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Chairperson, Committee on Rules 

RE: Committee Report on the Oversight Hearing of the Guam Regional Transit 

Authority 

Dea r Acting Speaker Terlaje: 
.--, 

Transmitted herewith is the Committee Report, pursuant to Section 11.~) of Rule XI, on 

the Oversight Hearing of the Guam Regional Transit Authority. 1!J 
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Committee Policy <committee@frankaguonjr.com> 

1st Notice-Oversight Hearing on Wednesday, September 5, 2018, at 3:00 PM 
2 messages 

Office of Sen. Frank B. Aguon, Jr.<committee@frankaguonjr.com> Wed, Aug 29, 2018 at 9:07 AM 
To: Committee Director <committee@frankaguonjr.com> 
Cc: Senator Aguon Media <media@frankaguonjr.com>, Communications & Media <communications@frankaguonjr.com>, 
"Frank Blas Aguon Jr." <aguon4guam@gmail.com>, "Office of Senator Frank Aguon, Jr. Admin" <admin@frankaguonjr.com>, 
Rosanna O'Mallan <staff@frankaguonjr.com>, Senator Aguon's Assistant <officeassistant@frankaguonjr.com>, "T.J. 
Quichocho" <outreach@frankaguonjr.com> 
Bee: phnotice@guamlegislature.org 

August 29, 2018 

MEMORANDUM 

To: All Senators, Media, and Stakeholders 

Fr. SENATOR FRANK B. AGUON, JR. 

Subject: 1st Notice - Oversight Hearing on Wednesday.,.,September S, 2018 at 3:00 PM 

In accordance with the Open Goverturmt lawofGuaII\. relative to notice for public meetings, please be advised that the Canmitteem 
Guam U.S. Military Buildu~ Infrastru~ and Transpoctatim, will convene an OwJjgbt Hearing on Weclnesslax,futemlzer S~ 
at 3;00 PM. Included on the agenda for discussion is the following topic: 

1. Guam Region.al Transit Autborlfy. ('GRIA'l 
a) Discussion of the Office of Public Accountability audit on the Guam Regional Transit Authority's (GRTA) non­

appropriated funds (FUND) between April 2016 to March 2018. 

The Hearing will broadcast on local television, G'fA Channel 21 andDocaro<humt'l 117 a stream!d ailineat: .www,gymiegis!ature.cqn. The 
Committee requests that, if written testimonies are to be presented at the oversight hearing, copies be submitted one day prior to the 
oversight hearing date, to the Office of Senator Frank B. Aguon, Jr. at Suite 503 DNA Bldg. 238 Archbishop Flores St. Hagati\a, Guam, or via 
fax to 475-GUM3(4863), or via email to: ~guon4gu~gmail,com. Individuals requiring special accommodations, auxiliary aids, or services 

should contact our office at 475-4861/62. Please feel free to contact my office should you have any questions or concems. 

Un Dangkdo Na Si Yu' a; Ma'ase! 

Respectfully. 

Committee on Guam US Military Buildup, Infrastructure, and Transportation 
Office of Senator Frank B. Aguon, Jr. 
Ste. 503 DNA Bldg, 238 Archbishop Flores St. Hagatna, Guam 96910 

Tel: (671) 475·GUM1/2 (4861/2} 
Fax: (671) 475·GUM3 (4863) 
aguon4guam@gmail.com I www.frankaguonjr.com 

NOTICE: The informatfon In thl& e-mail message, including any attachments. ls for the sole use of the intended rec:lplent(s) and may contain c.ontldentlal and 
privileged information. Afri unauthorized review. use. dlsciosu19 or dlslribl.llion Is prohibiled. If you are not the Intended recipient, please contact me by reply e­
mail, and destroy an copies of the original message. 

~ 1st Nottce.pdf 
405K 
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August 29, 2018 
Senator 

FRANK B. AGUON, JR. MEMORANDUM 
Chairman 
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Member 

Speaker 
Benjamin J .F. Cruz 
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To: All Senators, Media, and Stakeholders 

Fr: SENATOR FRANK B. AGUON, JR. 

Subject: 1 ST Notice - Oversight Hearing on Wednesday. September 5, 2018 at 3:00 PM 

In accordance with the Open Government Law of Guam, relative to notice for public meetings, please be advised 

that the Committee on Guam U.S. Military Buildup, Infrastructure, and Transportation, will convene an Ovegight 

Hearin1 on Wednesday, September 5. 2018 at 3:00 PM. Included on the agenda for d iscussion is the following 

topic: 

1. Guam Regional Transit Authority ('GRTA') 

a) Discussion of the Office of Public Accountability Audit on the Guam Regional Transit 

Authority's (GRTA) non-appropriated funds (FUND) between April 2016 to March 2018. 

The Hearing w ill broadcast on local television, GTA Channel 21 and Docomo Channel 117 or streamed online at: 
www.g1111mlegis/ature.com. The Committee requests that, if written testimonies are to be presented at the Public 

Hearing, copies be submitted one day prior to the public hearing date, to the Office of Senator Frank B. Aguon, Jr . at 

Suite 503 DNA Bldg. 238 Archbishop Flores St. Hagatfia, Guam, or via fax to 475-GUM3(4863), or via email to: 

aguon4guam@gmail.com. Copies of the aforementioned Bill(s) may be obtained at I Liheslaturan Gulfhan's website at: 

www.guamlegislature.com. Individuals requiring special accommodations, auxiliary aids, or services should contact 

our office at 475-4861/62. Please feel free to contact my office should you have any questions or concerns. 

Un Dtlngkolo Na Si Yu'os Ma'ase! 

m U.S. Military Buildup I Infrastructure I Transportation 
iheslaturan Gut1han I 34th Guam Legislature 

SUITE 503, DNA BLDG. 238 ARCHBISHOP FLORES STREET HAGA TN A, GUAM 96910 
PHONE: (671) 475.CUMl/2 (4861/1) I FAX: (671) 475-GUM3 (4863) I 

EMAIL: AGUON4GUAMCPGMAIL.COM 

WWW.FRANKAGUONJR.COM 



Committee Policy <commlttee@frankaguonjr.com> 

2nd Notice- Oversight Hearing on Wednesday, September 5, 2018, at 3:00 PM 
1 message 
----- - ---------------------------- -- - - -----

Office of Sen. Frank B. Aguon, Jr.<committee@frankaguonjr.com> Fri, Aug 31, 2018 at 10:16 AM 
To: Committee Director <committee@frankaguonjr.com> 
Cc: Senator Aguon Media <media@frankaguonjr.com>, Communications & Media <communications@frankaguonjr.com>, 
"Frank Blas Aguon Jr." <aguon4guam@gmail.com>, "Offioe of Senator Frank Aguon, Jr. Admin" <admin@frankaguonjr.com>, 
Rosanna O'Mallan <staff@frankaguonjr.com>, Senator Aguon's Assistant <officeassistant@frankaguonjr.com>, "T.J. 
Quichocho" <outreach@frankaguonjr.com> 
Bee: phnotice@guamlegislature.org 

August 31, 2018 

MEMORANDUM 

To: All Senators, Media, and Stakeholders 

Fr: SENATOR FRANK B. AGUON, JR. 

Subject: 2nd Notice - Oversight Hearing on Wednesday,,~ptember S, 2018 at 3;00 PM 

In accordance with the Open G<Mmrreit Law c:J. Guam, relative to notice for public meetings, please be advised that the Canmittee m 
Guam U.S. Military Buildup, lnfrastructur~ and Transpcrtatim, will convene an .Qnmight Hearing gn Wecinesdty,...&pkmber 5--™ 
at 3100 PM at the Guam Congress Building public hearing room located in Hagitiia. Included on the agenda for discussion is the 
following topic: 

1. Guam Regional Transit Auihority_('GRIA1 
a) Discussion of the Office of Public Accountability Audit on the Guam Regional Transit Authority's (GRTA) 
non-appropriated funds (FUND) between April 2016 to March 2018. 

The Hearing will broadcast on local television, GTA OlannEI 21 and DocaroOianne 117 <r strmmdailineat: ~gym!.egislature.can The 
Committee requests that, if written testimonies are to be presented at the Public Hearing, copies be submitted one day prior to the public 
hearing date, to the Office of Senator Frank B. Aguon, Jr. at Suite 503 DNA Bldg. 238 Archbishop Flores St. HagAtiia, Guam, or via fax to 
475-GUM3( 4863), or via email to: ilg~~gmail.com. Copies of the aforementioned Bill(s) may be obtained at I Uheslaturan Guitian' s 
website at: ~~gislature,corn. Individuals requiring special accommodations, auxiliary aids, or services should contact our office 
at 475-4861/62. Please feel free to contact my office should you have any questions or concerns. 

Un Danglrlo Na Si Yu' a> Ma'ase? 

Respectfully, 

Committee on Guam US Military Buildup, Infrastructure, and Transportation 
Office of Senator Frank B. Aguon, Jr. 
Ste. 503 DNA Bldg, 238 Archbishop Flores St. Hagatna, Guam 96910 

Tel: (671) 475-GUMl/2 (4861/2) 
Fax: (671) 475-GUM3 (4863) 
aguon4guam@gmail.com I www.franllaguonjr.com 

NOTICE: The information in this e-mail message, including any attachments. is for the sole use of the intended recipient{s) and may contain confidential and 
privileged information. Any unaulhorized review. use. disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you ere not the Intended recipient. please contact me by reply e­
mail, and destroy all copies of the original message. 

~ 2nd Notice.pdf 
416K 
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To: All Senators, Media, and Stakeholders 

Fr: SENATOR FRANK B. AGUON, JR. 

Subject: 2No Notice - Oversight Hearing on Wednesday. September 5. 2018 at 3:00 PM 

In accordance with the Open Government lAw of Guam, relative to notice for public meetings, please be advised 

that the Committee on Guam U.S. Military Buildup, Infrastructure, 11nd Transportation, will convene an Oversight 

Hearing on Wednesday. September S. 2018 at 3:00 PM at the Guam Congress Building public: hearing room 

located in Hagitiia. Included on the agenda for discussion is the following topic: 

1. Guam Regional Transit Authority ('GRT A') 
a) Discussion of the Office of Public Accountability Audit on the Guam Regional Transit 

Authority's (GRTA) non-appropriated funds (FUND) between April 2016 to March 2018. 

The Hearing will broadcast on local television, GTA Channel 21 and Docomo Channel 117 or stre11med on line at: 

www.g11nmlegis/ature.com. The Committee requests that, if written testimonies are to be presented at the Public 

Hearing, copies be submitted one day prior to the public hearing date, to the Office of Senator Frank B. Aguon, Jr. at 

Suite 503 DNA Bldg. 238 Archbishop Flores St. Haglma, Guam, or via fax to 475-GUM3( 4863), or via email to: 

aguon4guam@gmail.com. Copies of the aforementioned Bill(s) may be obtained at I Liheslaturan Gu4han's website at: 

www.gyamlegislature.com. Individuals requiring special accommodations, auxiliary aids, or services should contact 

our office at 475·4861/62. Please feel free to contact my office should you have any questions or concerns. 

Un Dtingkolo Na Si Yu'os Ma'ase! 

m U.S. Military Buildup I Infrastructure I Transportation 
Liheslaturan Gudhan I 34th Guam Legislature 
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EMAIL: AGUON4GUAM•GMAIL.COM 
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September 5, 2018 

Honorable Senator Frank. B. Aguon, Jr. , Chair 
Committee on Guam-U.S Military Buildup, Infrastructure, and Transportation 
34111 Guam Legislature 
Ste. 503 DNA Bldg. 
238 Archbishop Flores St. 
Hagatna, GU 96910 

Buenas Senator and Chairman Frank Aguon and Committee Members, 

I am Ginger Porter, a resident of Asan and a former member of the Board of 
Directors, Guam Regional Transit Authority. I have 14 years of engagement in 
transit issues and seven successful years of management at Guam Community 
College. I appreciate the opportunity to speak on the topics addressed by this 
oversight hearing. 

The issue of this oversight hearing, GRTA' s Non Appropriated Funds, is of interest to 
me. As a Board member, I had opportunity to observe and report to other board 
members the failure of the Executive Manager to appropriately manage finances for 
economy and efficiency of transportation services where spending/ailed to follow 
protocol of seeking Board review and permission to proceed, as evidenced by the 
implementation of a Southern Shuttle service that cost the agency close to a million 
dollars. 

I recently had the opportunity to review documents that were requested under the 
Freedom of Information Act for Non-Appropriated Fund activity from April 7, 2016 
through August 17, 2018 that provided detail of all documents supporting the 
expenses for 'parts and repairs/ services' category as identified in the OPA Report 
No. 18-06. I have attached for your review the summary of these documents, which 
did not include other services provided to the agency, as requested. It is my 
understanding that the NAF funds also provide payment for cleaning services 
provided to the agency office. 

My review reflected concerns expressed by GRTA office staff regarding necessary 
check and balance processes for expenditures from NAF. Of concern is the dual role 
the Executive Manager assumed in providing approval for payments and being one 
of two signers of a check for payment. The second signer was Board Chairwoman 
Louise Rivera. Based on the documents provided under the FOIA request most 
purchases lacked quotes and purchase orders. Both Executive Manager Agustin and 
Board Chairwoman signed for payment with the appearance that Ms. Rivera likely 
signed checks without requesting or reviewing supporting documentation. 

Payments to Americana Suppliers appear to be made under an arrangement of open 
procurement of $24, 999 for which there was lacking evidence of any supporting 

Oversight Hearing Guam Regional Transit Authority • NAF 1 
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documentation of quotes, bid processes, or purchase order. No official purchase 
order was provided. In evidence was a Americana Suppliers shop hand written note 
on a balance sheet where next to a line for purchase order is written the amount of 
$24,999, with the initials Q.F. Invoices for work orders signed by Eric Flores were 
provided for payment. 

There are a few charges for GRT A's Rav 4 and Ford F150 truck, which are used by 
the Executive Manager and the Transportation Supervisor to travel daily between 
their residence and place of employment. I twice questioned the usage, which is 
governed by Executive Order 76-6, restricting personal use of government vehicles, 
once while a Board member and again as a member of the public. The Board 
minutes of July 18 report that the Board designated two vehicles as 24-hour 
vehicles, one for the North and one for the South. A line of questioning about the 
frequency of call outs requiring those vehicles to be in service outside of the hours 
of Sam - 5 pm would be in order. If the responses fail to meet the test, it would 
indicate that public dollars for fuel and maintenance are going towards personal use 
under the permission of the Executive Manager and the Board Chairwoman. 
Perhaps this arrangement should be questioned by this Committee, as it has the 
appearance of a trade for the GRTA 2006 Kia van that is assigned to Mayor Rivera's 
Tatuha office. Although there are procedures for transferring equipment between 
agencies, the van remains on the GRTA inventory and is noted on GRTA's schedule 
for vehicle registration renewal. 

The NAF audit and the requested FOIA documents raise a red flag on the financial 
operations of GRTA under the management of Mr. Enrique Agustin and oversight of 
Board Chairwoman Louise Rivera. Management has ignored proper governmental 
expenditure processes in spite of completing government procurement training. 
Actions in regards to NAF fund expenditures have been questioned by GRT A staff, 
with a plea for help for external review and intervention. You will note that not all 
staff are present at this hearing. They are likely to provide information that 
supports what is observed in the FOIA documents. 

Supervision of management under the Chairmanship of Louise Rivera has been 
loosely applied. The Chairwoman is known to avoid placing anything in writing, 
relying on verbal communication. Therefore, there is little to no documentation of 
corrective action, communication, or directives. Both the Executive Manager and 
the Chairwoman rely on too many jungle rules and 'Father Knows Best' 
management. This is grinding the operations of GRTA into the ground. 

The Chairwoman recently stated that GRTA is heading in a good direction under 
new management. In truth, the management of Mr. Agustin is ending its 41h year and 
GRTA operational services are bleak. This week only one of eleven ARBOC buses is 
in operational condition. Service has been disrupted for the lack of vehicles and 
drivers. Management failure to retain provider owned vehicles within the Scope of 
Work for a 3-year contract provided no structure for provider compliance to 
maintain a sufficient fleet of operational vehicles. Management has failed to apply 

Oversight Hearing Guam Regional Transit Authority - NAP 2 
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the Scope of Work conditions of penalty for the lack of operators for available 
vehicles, which by examination of two such incidents on June 23, 2018, garner a 
penalty total of $1500. 

I don't know what the Board is waiting for. Contrary to the Chairwoman's public 
statements, GRTA is not improving. It is in fact diminishing in service to the public. 
In previous communications, I provided Board members with information of poor 
performance relevant to regression in areas of Finance and ADA accessibility as 
noted in FT A's 2017 State Management Review, reduced reliability of service, failure 
to address required processes, failure to provide for planned maintenance of GRTA 
vehicles, lack of attention to overpayment concerns, failure to make progress 
towards accessibility requirements, lack of knowledge of GRTA policy and FTA 
guidelines, poor transparency and communication, failure to meet all FOIA requests, 
violation of the mini-Hatch Act, approval of personal use of government vehicles, 
and hostile management responses to external guidance from agency personnel, 
board members, and riders. Most recently, there was failure to bring the NAF audit 
report and management's response of August 20, 2018 to the Board's attention at 
the August 21, 2018 Board Meeting. 

The present management has not provided a futures plan, a coordinated 
transportation plan, a succession plan, or a budgetary plan to increase revenue 
through means available by the enabling legislation. He has pushed away 
individuals who can provide him with assistance. The Governor provided a public 
statement requesting his resignation. This Legislative Committee chastised his 
inability to properly respond to their questioning and his failure to ensure public 
safety within operations. The riding public is bearing the brunt of his actions and the 
general public is seeing questionable expenditure of their tax dollars. His sole 
public supporter has been the Board Chairwoman. Perhaps it is time to review her 
performance as head of the Board of Directors. 

I have twice made public my appeal to the Board to make a change in Management. 
Mr. Chairman, I ask that you take direct action and provide pointed guidance to the 
Chairwoman and the present Board members to change management. In all the 
years that I have been involved in searching and selecting personnel, I know that 
given the opening of this position, there is talent in this community that can provide 
better management and future direction for GRTA. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Ginger S. Porter, M.Ed. 

Oversight Hearing Guam Regional Transit Authority - NAF 
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GRTA Non Appropriated Fund Account 

Summary of documents from ED FOIA Request. Incomplete. Office cleaning services not provided. 

Date Expense Amt Income Amt Vendor 

12.5.16 $ 44.50 AK Service Dept. Diagnostic - Check Engine Light 

1.25.17 $ 15.00 One Stop Auto Care llre repair - 1 

3.7.17 $ 15.00 Kloppenburg Enterprises llre repair - l . Reimburse. 

3.7.17 s 35.00 Kloppenburg Enterprises Drill & rethread bracket bolt. Reimburse. 

3.22.17 $ 20,000.00 Takagi & Associates Insurance. Property Damage Settlement. 

4.26.17 $ 39.77 TripleJ Coolant - 1 

4.26.17 s 28.94 TripleJ Power Steering fluid - 2 

5.2.17 $ 48.00 Diamond Auto Parts 16 qt Performance motor oil 

5.5.17 $ 27.14 AK Parts Coolant - 1 

5.10.17 $ 100,000.00 Treasurer of Guam to GRTA Rev. Acct #331757001 

5.12.17 $ 15.00 United Tire tire repair - 1 

5.18.17 $ 25.00 United Tire Tire repair - 1 

5.25.17 s 15.00 United Tire Tire repair - 1 

6.8.17 s 15.00 United llre Tire repair - 1 

6.9.17 $ 30.00 Guam Sanko Tire replacement - 2 

7.27.17 $ 45.00 Commercial Tire Depot Tire replacement w/ spare 

11.22.17 $ 125.00 Big Ben Towing charge. AK to DPW compound 

Bus damage repair of accident 12.19.16. 

12.6.17 $ 10,000.00 Fukuda Enterprises 50% down payment 

Bus damage repair of accident 12.19.16. 

1.31.18 $ 10,000.00 Fukuda Enterprises Payment 

Bus damage repair of accident 12.19.16. 

11.30.17 $ 9,000.00 Fukuda Enterprises balance due payment 

6.19.18 $ 78.20 Car Quest Coolant - 5, Brake fluid - 2 

Notes. 

2015 RAV4. E. Agustin drives vehicle 

between residence and GRT A daily. 

Petty Cash . No vehicle designat ion. 

PT005. United llre invoice 132228 
PT 010 Sam Sung Machine Shop Invoice 

10371 

PT 106 Collision 12.19.16 .. Chk#44071 

PT002. Petty Cash. 

PT002. Petty Cash. 

PT003. 3 quotes Petty Cash. 

Arboc, Chevy. Petty cash. 

Bus fares. IFB for major & minor repairs of 

GRTA owned vehicles. 

PTOlO. Petty Cash 

PT105. Petty Cash 

PT008. Petty cash 

PTOlO. Petty cash 

PT103 Petty (ash 

PTlOO Petty cash 

PTlOO 

PT106. NAF Check #127 

PT106. NAF Check #133 

PT106. P0176A04208 
Approved for payment E. Agustin, Check 

signer E. Agustin & L. Rivera 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 
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Date Expense Amt Income Amt Vendor Purpose 

6.19.18 $ 3,400.00 Americana Suppliers Air compressor -1, remove and install 

Replace wheel bearing - 2; replace tire 

stud, replace wiper motor, clear AC 

6.27.18 $ 1,900.00 Americana Suppliers button. 

6.28.18 $ 375.00 Americana Suppliers Muffler exhaust repair 

Injector remove, replace - 1; coil pack 

7.9.18 $ 1,323.00 Americana Suppliers remove replace 

Remove replace tail light - 1; remove 

replace speed sensor & wheel bearings -

4; remove replace wiper motor - 1/ 

7.18.18 $ 5,850.00 Americana Suppliers remove replace ABS module - 1 

Invoice 5015. Repair and maintenance: 

remove/replace front shocks - 2, rear 

7.19.18 $ 2,740.00 Americana Suppliers pressure switch w/hose - 1 

Cars Unlimited via Mark Express Detail package w ith wax. For 

7.20.18 $ 109.99 Crisost omo Liberation Day Parade. 

8.1.18 $ 9.50 Triple J Transmission fluid - 1 

Invoice 3907. Alternator/Fan Belt. No 

8.14.18 $ 2,785.00 Americana Suppliers document 

8.15.18 $ 655.00 Americana Suppliers Invoice 3914. Brakes. No document 

Notes. 
PTllO NO quotes shown. Approved tor 

payment E. Agustin, Check signer E. 

Agustin & l. Rivera. Noted Americana -

24,999Q.F. 
P 1 uut> No quotes shown. Approved tor 

payment E. Agustin, Check signer E. 

Agustin & l. Rivera. Noted Americana -

24,999 - Q.F. 
PT1oo No quotes snown. Approved tor 

payment E. Agustin, Check signer E. 

Agustin & l. Rivera. Noted Americana -

24,999Q.F. 
PT109. No quotes snown. Approved tor 

payment E. Agustin, Check signer E. 

Agustin & l . Rivera. Noted Americana -

24,999Q.F. 

PT008 No quotes shown. Approved for 

payment E. Agustin, Check signer E. 

Agustin & L. Rivera. Noted Americana -

24,999 Q.F. 

PTUO. No quotes shown. Charged to PO 

Amount $24,999 w/o PO documentation 

submitted 

F1SO truck. Petty Cash. No 3 quotes. MC 
daily drives vehilcle between Umatac 
residence and GRT A 

Petty Cash. No vehicle designation. 
PTlou. No quotes shown. No documents. 

Charged to PO Amount $24,999 w/o 

documentation submitted 
PT109. No quotes shown. No documents. 

Charged to PO Amount $24,999 w/o 

documentation submitted 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 
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Date Expense Amt Income Amt Vendor Purpose Notes. 
PTlOS. No quotes shown. No documents. 

Invoice 3915. Brakes & A/Tank. No Charged to PO Amount $24,999 w/o 

8.15.18 $ 887.00 Americana Suppliers document documentation submitted ./ 32 



Written Testimony from Enrique Agustin, Executive Manager of the Guam 
Regional Transit Authority (GRTA), for the Oversight Hearing pertaining to the 
Non Appropriated Funds {NAF) under the control of GRTA. 5 September 2018 

Good Afternoon Mr. Chair, Senators of this oversight hearing. 

I am Enrique Agustin, Executive Manager for the Guam Regional Transit Authority. 

We are here today as a results of the most recent audit of our non-appropriated funds (NAF) by 

the Office of Public Accountability (OPA). 

With me today is my board Chairwoman, the Honorable Mayor Rivera, board member the 

Honorable vice mayor of Oededo, Mr. Frank Benavente, director Andrew Tydingco, director 

David Arentz as well as my key staff, those that are involved in handling NAF transactions. 

To my left is Jennifer Cruz my acting Administrative Officer, and to my right is Rally Pilipina my 

chief planner. 

Behind me is Penni Atoigue, GRTA board secretary and Mr. Joe Roberto a SCSEP worker from 

department of labor recently assigned to work temporarily with GRTA. 

Two months ago, I have a total staff of 9 people, not including myself, and now down to 6. My 

transportation supervisor is currently on leave to witness his Son graduate from the aviation 

(helicopter) maintenance school and two of my staff hired less than a year ago and not involved 

in NAF activities are back at the office to handle day to day office administration during this 

over sight hearing. 

To begin with the main body of my written testimony, the question is "why did GRTA open a 

checking account?" and the answer is that, the bus fare monies collected many years ago and 

up to the time we opened the checking account in April 2016 was never given or credited to 

GRTA and was being used elsewhere. GRTA is a very small autonomous agency and is barely 

funded by both the Guam Highway Fund (GHF) through the liquid fuel tax and the Public Transit 

Fund via the Mass transit automotive surcharge. These are not "General funds" but are Special 

funds. 

Our enabling act Public Law 30-05 back in March 2009 states that all funds regardless of the 

source of the funding will be deposited into the GRTA checking account. 

Attachment "A" one of my attached documents responding to the OPA audit findings, I asked 

the OPA to conduct both a financial audit and a performance audit . This was requested way 

back on December 24, 2015. 



I asked for these two audits, because during my due diligence research of the history and 

financial status of GRTA, I discovered that a very large sum of money, $20 million dollars was to 

be used to purchase fifty (SO) transit buses by the year 2015 and for the building of a bus 

maintenance facility completing around the same time frame. 

Where is the $20 million dollars and why was it not spent to purchase 50 transit buses and 

build a transit vehicle maintenance facility? 

Additionally, GRTA was not getting their fair share of the liquid fuel tax which was shared by 

DPW and GRTA. Instead tens of millions of dollars over many years were diverted and u se by 

several non-transportation agency. This was brought up recently by Ms. Doris Brooks the 

former Public Auditor. 

Further, Public Law 30-05 dictates that all personnel, real estate assets, documents and other 

previously owned assets by the former Guam Mass Transit Authority (GMTA) were to revert to 

GRTA upon a board quorum in March 2009. Only 5of13 personnel was actually transferred to 

GRTA and the old public transit Hagatna office building was never returned. As a result, GRTA 

staff have moved four (4) times already and we still do not have a permanent office. 

Senators, GRTA Is not reliving the past despite the nature of my written 

testimony ......... however, the "Sins of the Past" have continued to haunt us and we are 

currently suffering from extreme shortage of staff and lacking the necessary funds to have a 

well-functioning transit agency able to provide good transportation for our ridership ... tax 

payers. 

Now back to the question of why GRTA opened a checking account? 

In 2015, GRTA bought 12 transit vans (ARRA funded in 2009) and in 2016 bought 11 transit 

buses (FTA funded in 2008). Despite the fact these vehicles was in full view at the DPW 

compound and was general knowledge by the community and the transit ridership, no Gov. 

Guam monies were allocated nor budgeted for the maintenance of these new vehicles. 

Both the ARRA and FTA federal funds were for vehicle purchases only and that the federal grant 

did not allow for these funds to be used for any vehicle maintenance contract. 

After two years the arduous procurement journey to turn the "month to month bus service 

contract" into a long term bus service contract was finally awarded on 23 November 2016, and 

the complete hand over of the 23 transit operational vehicle was executed in January 2017. 



All of these vehicles have a manufacture's "bumper to bumper" warranty of 36,000 miles or 36 

months, but were being used for 15 hours a day 6 days a week and rapidly ate up the mileage 

and ran into faster than normal "fair, wear and tear" of vehicle main components and parts. 

Despite the fact that GRTA was not given a maintenance budget by our local government, these 

vehicles were put into service so that the transit riders would enjoy a better ride with more bus 

frequency and better transportation coverage of our island. 

It took a few months to write the scope and specification for a vehicle maintenance program 

and in May 2017 a procurement request was transmitted to GSA to bid out and award a vehicle 

maintenance contract. One hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) of NAF monies was allocated 

for this procurement activity. 

Pending the award of the $ lOOK (NAF money) vehicle maintenance contract by GSA, in the 

interim, GRTA took the initiative of procuring a small vehicle maintenance contract (less than 

$25,000) to repair as many GRTA vehicles as possible and keep our vehicle fleet operational. 

Additionally, GRTA used portion of the NAF monies to award a short ground maintenance 

contract (90 days), purchase newly printed bus fare tickets as well as purchase of other items to 

make repairs to bus shelters as well as keep GRTA functional and operational. 

For your information Senators and especially to the viewing public, GRTA's budget for fiscal 

2019 is $3.2 million .... or a budget cut of $445,000 (12.1%) compared to the last three fiscal 

years budget of $3.6 million each year. 

To put it into perspective Senators, the old Guam Mass Transit Authority (GMTA's) budget 

back in fiscal year 1998 (20 years ago) was $3.2 million with only ten (10) vehicles compared 

to the present GRTA fleet of 23 operational vehicles. 

I just finish mentioning what has transpired in the past that adversely affects 
GRTA to the present time, however I am ready to answer and provide specific 
answers to the NAF audit that is today's agenda and how to move forward in 
addressing our NAF tracking procedures. 
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COMMITTEE REPORT DIGEST 

OVERVIEW 

The Committee on Guam US Militar_y Buildup, Infrastructure, and Transportation 
convened an Oversight Hearing on Wednesday. Se.,ptember 5th, 2018 at 3:00 PM at 
the Guam Congress Building's Public Hearing Room in Hagatiia.. Included on the 
agenda for discussion was the following topic: 

a. Discussion of the Office of Public Accountability Audit on the Guam Regional 

Transit Authority's (GRTA) non.appropriated funds (FUND) between April 

2016 to March 2018. 

Public Notice Retuimnents 
Notices were disseminated via e-mail to all senators and all main media 
broadcasting outlets on Wednesday, August 29. 2018 (5-Day Notice), and again on 
Friday. August 31. 2018 (48-Hour Notice). 

Senators Present 
Senator Frank B. Agum\ Jr., Chairperson 
Senator Joe S. San Agustin, Committee Member 
Senator Regine Biscoe Lee, Committee Member 
Senator Telena C. Nelson 

SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY It DISCUSSION 
The Oversight Hearing was Called-to-Order at 3:00 PM 

Chairman Aguon: 
Hifa adai ladies and gentlemen. This Oversight Hearing on the Guam Regional 

Transit Authority is hereby convened by the oommittee on the Guam U.S. Military 

Buildup Infrastructure and Transportation. Just in compliance with the open 

government law, I want to notify the public that the initial notification for this 

oversight hearing was sent out on Wednesday August 291h and the subsequent 

notification which is also a requirement by the open government law, the second 

notice was sent out on August 31•. The items on the agenda today would be 

primarily the discussion of the office of public accountability audit on the Guam 

Regional Transit Authorities, GRTA Non-Appropriated Funds between the 

timelines of April 2016 to March 2018. At this time, I'd like to recognize my 
colleague for joining me this afternoon, Senator San Agustin, thank you very much 
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Chairman Aguon: 

If I can invite Mr. Rick Agustin, who's the general manager for GRTA and any of the board members or other 

administrators that you would like to have join you. If you can invite them up to the front. I do see 

representatives of the Office of Public Accountability. Would you like to also join in the discussion? Just for the 

information of the community, on August 21•1 2018, the performance audit that was conducted on the Non­

Appropriated Funds for the Guam Regional Transit Authority was released to the appropriate stakeholders, 

inclusive of the Governor and members of the legislatures, also the public and the part of the findings of that 

particular audit reflected several things and I would like to highlight this and then allow the administrator of 

the Guam Regional Transit Authority to be able to provide appropriate response. The purpose of this oversight 

hearing is to understand, to recognize not only the recommendations and the findings of the Office of Public 

Accountability, but since the completion of this performance audit on the Non-Appropriated Fund, what has 

management at GRT A, what actions have they undertaken in terms of addressing some of these concerns and 

some of these findings. It's very important that when we're dealing with Non-Appropriated Fund that in fact 

there are appropriate mechanisms in place to ensure that there's no misuse or unlawful taking of some of these 

proceeds. I will read captions of the summary that was provided to the chair and also was inclusive in the 

audit report. The objective of the audit initially was to determine whether GRTA's fund was properly 

managed and accounted for in accordance with applicable laws, regulations and best practices and like was 

mentioned a little earlier, the time frame in which the performance audit was conducted is within the dates of 

April 2016 to March 2018. 

The results of the audit, and I will allow management to be able to provide their appropriate response. The 

results of the audit found that no accounting system and lack of basic controls were in place. Secondly, also 

that $55,000 in bus fares were not deposited. Third, no monitoring or reporting of GRTA fund and then fourth, 

finding was no significant deficiencies on the disbursements. The conclusion by the Office of Public 

Accountability was, we found that the GRTA fund was not properly managed and accounted for in 

accordance with applicable laws regulations and best practices. GRTA management did not prioritize internal 

controls over the fund to reduce risks of theft and misuse of GRTA's program income. As a result, $55,000 in 

GRTA bus fares reported in the contracted bus operator's contractor invoices were not deposited into the fund. 

Recommendations included five items. Mr. general manager, Mr. Agustin, what I will do is I will read the 

recommendations and then we will go back to number one, the first recommendation and then we'll start off 

with that in terms of any action that you as the manager of GRT A has undertaken in addressing some of the 

recommendations provided by the Office of Public Accountability. 

So, the first recommendation was to include specifications for the process of depositing bus fares collected by 

the contractor in its formal contract, including more detailed reporting of bus fares and ticket sells, i.e. cash, 

check, credit card payments, collected by the contractor and each subcontractor to allow GRTA to reconcile 

against deposits. The second recommendation was to assign staff to actively monitor receipts and verify the 

completeness of bus fare deposits. The third recommendation was to adopt proper control activities, including 

establishing effective policies and SOP's, maintaining a check register and performing bank reconciliations. 
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Chairman Aguon: 
Fourth recommendation was to send appropriate staff to NAF which is Non-Appropriated Fund management 

training and the fifth recommendation by the Office of Public Accountability was to be more transparent and 

accountable by reporting the funds activity to those charged with governance including the GRTA board and 

if requested by the legislature or the Governor. Mr. Agustin, before I allow you to provide any feedback in 

response to some of the recommendations, if the Office of Public Auditor has any additional comments, you 

would like to provide the committee before we open it up for presentation by GRTA representatives? 

Ms. Yuka Hechanova: 
Yes, thank you Mr. Chair. We did have some communication after the audit was issued and so GRTA, Mr. 

Agustin himself had reached out to us to ask from some assistance in how to implement their new SOP's and 

what have you. 

Chairman Aguon: 

I'm sorry, just for the record if you can identify yourself, for the record. 

Ms. Yuka Hechanova: 

Oh yes, Yuka Hechanova deputy public auditor at the OPA. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Thank you. 

Ms. Yuka Hechanova: 

So, we wanted to offer some assistance but had to caution him that we have to remain independent in case we 

come back and audit again. We cannot come back and audit our own work. So as much as we wanted to 

provide the guidance that he requested, we instead referred him to some websites, like at the Association of 

Government Accountants for some best practices and but did let him know that it would be his responsibility 

to come up with the SOP's and the guidance that they would need to close the recommendations. 

Chairman Aguon: 
And also, did you want to add about the reconciliation of the $55,000 that w as identified and not deposited, 

after your audit was completed? 

Ms. Yuka Hechanova: 
Actually, Ira is the staff auditor who just did the comparison of what they had reported in the invoices versus 

the bank statements and she noticed that there was $40,000 that was not deposited and so when we went to 

talk to them about the $40,000, GRTA went to the contractor and it turns out that there was another $15,000 

that was not deposited. The contractor did deposit the $55,000 shortly after that. So, the money has been 

deposited, but we're only looking at a two-year period. We didn't go back and look at the other periods and 

we're not sure if there's any other funds that might be missing. 

Chairman Aguon: 
Okay. I just wanted to ensure that from your perspective, having conducted the audit over the timeframe that 

was highlighted, that the $55,000 was identified to not have been deposited was remitted after you identified 

that as a concern. 
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Ms. Yuka Hechanova: 
Yes, after we brought it to their attention. 

Chairman Aguon: 
Okay, because that was one of your findings in the performance audit and I just want the people of Guam to 

understand that yes, the funds were remitted. The issue here comes back to control and the mechanism to be 

able to ensure accountability of all the funds. 

Ms. Yuka Hechanova: 
Yes. Absolutely. That's exactly right. Thank you. 

Chairman Aguon: 
Thank you very much, Yuka. Mr. Agustin, if you can identify yourself and then those who have joined you on 

the table and then you can provide response to. I will ask you the first question. The first recommendation that 

was provided and I will repeat it. it's to include specification for the process of depositing bus fares collected 

by the contractor in this formal contract including more detailed reporting of bus fares and ticket sells 

collected by the contractor and each subcontractor to allow GRTA to reconcile against deposits. So that is the 

first recommendation that was provided by the OPA with regards to the performance audit and if you can 

identify yourself for the record and then respond to that particular recommendation. And if you notice the 

format of the hearing is, there's already a recognition of findings. My concern as chair is, what has been 

undertaken and what has GRTA done to be able to assure that these recommendations are either addressed or 

respond whether there's already a system in place. Mr. Agustin please. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
Thank you, Mr. Chair, Senator Lee, Senator San Agustin. My name is Enrique Agustin the executive manager 

for Guam Regional Transit Authority. Two of my senior staff, on my left is Myra Abayas is still on leave, but 

she came back from the Philippines to be part of this and Rally Pilipina my chief planner, but most 

importantly, I have the honorable Mayor Louise Rivera, the board chair. I have an opening remark, Senator, 

but I will forego that and I will give it to your staff. On item number one, maintaining a check register. Our 

original method of conducting and collecting our records is through bank statement and deposit slips from the 

vendor. However, we are very lacking on and short of people. We don't have an accountant, but however, I 

did find somebody that, is an expert on Excel, one of the newest employee, our PC2 and I offer a check register 

that was developed as a sample. So, to answer the recommendation on item number one, we have developed a 

check register. This has not yet been approved by the board. We are having a board meeting on the l81h of trus 

month and we will go through this check register and ask the board and other staff if there's any additional 

information or a better product of this sample here. This is just a sample of the 2017 register that captures all of 

our expenses and all of our revenues. 

Chairman Aguon: 
Mr. Agustin, was this in existence prior to, or was this created subsequent to the performance audit? 
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Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
This was created after the performance audit. I did reach out to the deputy OPA and she referred me to a green 

book. I think it's an accounting process done at the federal level. But this is something that we came up with 

and it was my PC2 that actually drafted this excel. So, we have a better way of tracking all the debits and 

credits. 

Chairman Aguon: 
So, this, I mean I understand that the board is going to be reviewing this and adopting it. Madam Mayor have 

you had the opportunity to review this? Okay. Another thing, is this register formatted document would 

encompass each and every transaction? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
The way this is formatted right now, Senator is it would capture all invoices, all receipts, bank statements and 

whatever it is that we need to have a solid NAF tracking process. 

Chairman Aguon: 
Can I also recommend before, and this is coming from the chair, recommend that prior to having the board 

adopt this format because at least you have a resource now. You have a document that based on your 

understanding would incorporate each and every transaction associated with the non-appropriated funds 

account, GRT A account. I would recommend that you also seek guidance from your sister agency and I 

literally say sister agency, Department of Administration that deals with non-appropriated funds, or any of the 

other Government of Guam agencies that deal with similar accounts because rather than reinventing the 

wheel, it's about looking at what already is existing within the Government of Guam family and seeing if in 

fact this is sufficient to address your concern and the findings of the OP A. Do you have any guidance or 

recommendations, Yuka? 

Ms. Yuk.a Hechanova: 
If they have. As we go through the process when they submit us documentation, to close the recommendations 

that's the time when we would review whatever they, but we haven't seen anything yet so far, so I couldn't 

promise-

Chairman Aguon: 
Okay, because it's sti11 subject to the board's consideration. 

Ms. Yuka Hechanova: 

Yes. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Okay. 

Board Chairwomen Louise Rivera: 

And if I may. 
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Chairman Aguon: 
Yes, Madam Mayor. 

Board Chairwomen Louise Rivera: 
Because with the Mayor's Council of Guam, we get audited annually and so, you know if this is something 

that's needed, we've already been through the process and this is something I can share with GRT A, you 

know, how we keep our book with Mayor's Council of Guam. Because you know, like I said, we do have our 

annual audit and then we can get advice from the OPA. If it'll work because it's you know, NAF that we deal 

with and then the reporting mechanisms to follow. 

Chairman Aguon: 
Thank you, mayor. Now one follow-up question. Now how would you cross-check this register, which is 

reflective of all the transactions in the non-appropriate funds account with the activities of the contractor, the 

bus operator? Because that, I believe is where the discrepancy appeared, where $55,000 over a two-year time 

frame was not registered until such time that the books were looked at between the contractor and what GRTA 

had in place and then that's where the $55,000 had to be reconciled. So that's my question. How would you 

reconcile this register with the contractor's information, the number of bus riders, the fees that are generated 

on a daily basis and whatnot? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
We do have a document that the contractor gives us as part of their billing and revues. On another note, Mr. 

Chair while we're waiting for my handout. Is that I did reach out to the OPA and I asked specifically, is there 

another agency similar to ours that has an NAF, Non-Appropriated Fund that we will use that as a model so 

we can, in fact, make sure that we're headed in the right direction and the model was not suggested to us 

because it would compromise the audit process, I believe in the future. 

Chairman Aguon: 
But just on that note, Mr. Agustin, the mayor just alluded to the Mayor's Council of Guam, working with Non­

Appropriated Fund. So that's I mean -

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
I agree that we would. 

Chairman Aguon: 
You have a mayor that already has access to a similar program that should be able to share some of that 

information. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
Okay. 

Chairman Aguon: 
Okay. Senator's we're going to go through the five items that were recommended by the OP A and then I will 

open it up to questions. So, Mr. Agustin, I'm still waiting for that response in terms of how the contractor's 

information would be reconciled with this register. 
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Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

I' ll provide that as soon as we find her. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Okay. The next recommendation by the OPA was to assign staff to actively monitor receipts and verify the 

completeness of bus fare deposits and obviously it all deals with the same fund account. So, Mr. executive 

manager? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

I have asked the board Secretary to look at courses that are offered, either Excel or other QuickBooks is one of 

the recommendation. We want to make sure that we have a program that is not excessively costly, but it's 

sufficient enough for what we're trying to do. I have another handout here of what eventually would happen. 

Chairman Aguon: 
But Mr. Agustin, have you assigned staff? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Yes. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Okay. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

I have assigned my secretary to look at courses so-

Chairman Aguon: 
No but, have you assigned staff specifically to monitor the receipts and verify the bus fare deposits? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Yes, it would be the acting ASO because Myra is retiring this month. So, I would send Jennifer, person that's 

acting in the capacity of Myra and I would send the board secretary. Those are the two that I would send. I've 

already had discussed this with them previously. 

Chainnan Aguon: 

Okay, so you 've iden tified two staff members, one would be the board secretary and then the other one would 

be a program coordinator 2? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

No, the program coordinator 2 is actually does a lot of work. 

Chairman Aguon: 
Okay, who's' the other individual? Jennifer and 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Jennifer's the acting 
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Chairman Aguon: 
Okay, so you've identified two staff that are going to undergo, and we're going into one of the other follow-on 

questions or recommendations, but you've identified two personnel that would be responsible for undergoing 

some necessary training and then also ensuring that the records reflect and reconcile the account activity with 

the contractor information. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
That's correct. The handout that is being made. 

Chairman Aguon: 
Yes, what's your timeline, Mr. Agustin? For the training. You've already identified two individuals. I take it 

that they have now been assigned to undertaking this responsibility? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
They have been verbally assigned and the board secretary has been instructed to call GCC to find out what 

courses are available in accounting. Especially on Excel or Quick Book. 

Chairman Aguon: 
Okay, so what's your timeline for participation in a training program and completion? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
As soon as there's a course available and the board approves the costs for that training. So probably by this 

month, not probably. By this month, I would ask the board to approve the training, pending when the training 

is actually going to be conducted and then we will know when those courses are available. 

Chairman Aguon: 
Okay. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
As soon as the course becomes available. We'll be able to send people. 

Chairman Aguon: 
We have some excellent resources in the Government of Guam family also that certainly can provide at least 

an initial informal training on the identification and accounting and the responsibilities associated with 

unappropriated of funds in the interim. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
Yes. 

Chairman Aguon: 
Until such time that training is completed. So please take that into consideration. The third recommendation as 
to adopt proper control activities, including establishing effective policies and, SOP's maintaining a check 
register, which you provided us a copy, and performing backward bank reconciliations. So, have you 
undertaken any action on that recommendation? 
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Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

We do have a resolution that followed by policy and procedures on how to handle petty cash. We will now 

have to develop a policy to address every issue that the auditor shown us and that we will take action on it. 

Yes, policy and procedures for GRTA. This was not done recently. This has always been in our system. 

Chairman Aguon: 

So, you're presenting the committee with petty cash fund procedures, petty cash request and reimbursement, 

petty cash custodian agreement. OPA representatives, have you had an opportunity to review some of these 

documents? 

Ms. Yuka Hechanova: 

Yes, those are specifically for petty cash. They had a separate SOP for handling the checking account, but it 

really lacked a lot of control features. It was maybe a page or two long and it wasn't complete. So, we did see 

the petty cash, but the petty cash is just one component of an expenditure that they make from the fund. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Okay, did you recognize and understand that recommendation? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Yes, yes, I do. 

Chairman Aguon: 

So, what SOP's have you pursued or are you working on establishing that would address the Non­

Appropriated Fund, the entire fund, not just petty cash. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

We have not started that SOP, Mr. Chair. If you would refer to this handout, this handout will now dictate 

how our SOP will move forward. lf I may be allowed to read effective 1 October, this is pending the board 's 

approval. No GRTA bus tickets will be sold at the vendor's facility. All bus tickets will be bought at the 

Treasure of Guam, located at the ITC building, first floor. We currently have that process. Bulk sell of bus 

tickets for all Government agencies will be done at GRTA office via a voucher or cashier's check or agency's 

check. We will not accept cash. Third, GRTA staff personnel will pick up from the vendor' facility. All money, 

this is cash that people put on the fare box and will be collected. The money that was collected from the 

previous day's will be picked up and made deposit to the bank. So, when we have two shifts with the drivers, 

when they first come in as they do now, they put it in an envelope and it's counted later by the vendor's 

accountant. We will be the one in control of that envelope, who will pick it up that afternoon and on the night 

shift when they come in at the end of the day at 8:30, that cash we will pick the next day from that envelope 

and deposit to the bank. I have spoken to my -

Chairman Aguon: 

Do you have an SOP or a policy that highlights that step, that procedure? 
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Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

No, this is what I'm saying Mr. Chair. Is that because this is something that I'm recommending to the board 

that once it's accepted, we will come up with an outline and a policy addressing specifically moving forward 

how we' re going to do things. 

Chairman Aguon: 

So where are the bus riders on this? Your proposal that you just presented, is that all payments for bus fares 

now would be centralized, but at the contractor's facility and also at GRTA. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

I don't understand the question. You said, where is the bus riders? 

Chairman Aguon: 

So, all the payments and the receipt of bus fares will now be collected at the Treasurer of Guam. Is that 

correct? At ITC building? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

No, the process is this, when. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Please, because some of our riders are listening. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

When a rider gets onboard the bus, they put their money in the bus fare collection. If they have a ticket, they 

will show it to the driver. Those tickets already been previously bought and accounted for. So, the money, the 

coins, the $0.35, the $1.50, at the end of this shift will be collected and put in an envelope. That day after that 

shift ends, we will pick those envelopes plus the envelop from the previous night because the bus driver 

doesn't come in until around 8:30 at night. So, take those envelopes and go directly to Bank of Guam and 

deposit the money to Bank of Guam. We have thought of using a company, maybe like G4S but that's going to 

be too expensive. We have other, better things to do with our NAF funds. So, Mr. Chair, we don't have that 

policy yet, it's pending. The discussion with the board and then we would outline an SOP and create an SOP. 

And then have them approve it and then we will provide a copy to you and the OP A. I think it's important to 

note also that I have a short-term solution. Which is in one of my response to the OPA findings itself and that 

is to hire a bookkeeping firm to maintaining all records, invoices, vouchers and make a monthly report to 

GRT A executive manager so that this will be reported during the GRTA board meeting and the reason why 

I'm doing that is we wanted a professional to start us off in the right direction and the long term is to actually 

get ourselves a staff who is actually an accountant. We were authorized accountants before, however that was 

removed from our organizational chart. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Okay. So right now, it's still pending. Any board decision in regards to your recommendations and then we're 

still probably months away, if not a year away from formulating an SOP? 
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Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

No. The SOP shouldn't take that long. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Because the SOP would be reflective of something that the staff would have to adopt or it would be adopted 

by the board, implemented by yourself, the staff would have to understand it and ensure that everyone is 

properly trained, especially the two individuals that you identified, would be responsible for the receipt and 

the accounting of all of the proceeds. So now I'm hearing that you also want to hire a bookkeeping firm. I'm 

thinking about your staffing pattern and seeing if there's anyone that, you already identified two individuals 

that would be responsible for initial bookkeeping and accountability and formulating the registrar that your 

provided us. Then now we're looking at also adding to that and hiring a bookkeeper. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

I'm recommending that that's what we do on the onset while we're sending people to training. The two people 

that I mentioned is a secretary, a board secretary, she's not an accountant. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Yeah. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Jennifer is not an accountant. There's not a lot to learn to maintain this, but they have to understand 

accounting principles. So, it's not going to take a whole year, we have a very small staff and it's getting 

smaller, but we will make it happen. But it's not going to take a whole year, Senator. 

Chairman Aguon: 

And I believe that anyone that's dealing directly with cash collections and deposits that they have to undergo 

an initial training over at Department of Administration and how to handle cash and they have to be certified 

from that perspective. So, take a look at that, Mr. Agustin, take a look at what the requirements are of the 

Government of Guam in terms of actually dealing with cash because there are some initial requirements if 

you' re dealing with a massive amount of cash and it's a bonding insurance requirement for certain agencies, 

but if you're dealing with Non-Appropriated Fund, there's another mechanism that is required to ensure that 

the public's funds are properly expended, collected and accounted for. Okay, the other question, you alreaay 

answered, Mr. Agustin, send appropriate staff to Non-Appropriated Fund management training, you said that 

you're going to try to identify training opportunities for the two of the staff members that you have identified 

to be responsible for this and then provide the chair as well as others inclusive of the board. Updates on that. 

So, the final recommendation by the Office of the Public Auditor was being more transparent and accountable 

by reporting the Funds activities to those charged in governance including GRT A board and if requested by 

the legislature or the Governor. And I take exception and if requested because there's a mandate in every 

budget law that requires any agency inclusive of Non-Appropriate Funds that on a quarterly basis that the 

fund activity has to be reported to the Governor's office and to the legislature. 
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Chairman Aguon: 

So, it's not about a recommendation, this is really not a recommendation when it comes to including the 

legislature and the Governor's office, it is a mandate by law, so that we, my office had done a little bit of 

research, just the last two years in terms of communications from GRTA, and we have yet to receive any 

financial accounting or register that reflects the funding activities of the GRT A Non-Appropriated Fund. So 

that's another mechanism, another requirement, Mr. Agustin that has to be complied with and I encourage you 

to take a look at the law because it does specify exactly what the requirements are on a, at least I believe it's a 

minimal of a quarterly basis that the fund activity be reported to the respective chairs as well as the speaker of 

the Guam legislature and the Governor's office. So, can we anticipate receiving some financial report on the 

fund? Madam chair, let's say within 60 days? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Yes. 

Board Chairwomen Louise Rivera: 
Yeah, I'm sure we can manage that. And I really apologize for not bringing that up, you know when we first 

opened up this NAP account because you know, I do know, with us at the Mayor's Council of Guam, with our 

NAF we are to report it, you know, to the Governor and the legislature and you know, all our different places, 

you know that need to be informed of what's going on especially if it deals with our government offices. So 

right now, I know, we are learning a lot, we're just trying to get off, you know, off the ground and make things 

right. There was a lot of stuff that were not don't at all and so now that we' re trying to get personnel in, you 

know, to do things accordingly and make sure that everything is done correctly and you know. Again, we 

never put in a report because I don't think it was brought up and we really appreciate it when you guys send 

staff to our monthly meetings so that whatever we discuss and is needed, any concerns or advice that you 

guys can give us, we welcome it. To move forward and to do things correctly. 

Chainnan Aguon: 

Thank you very much Mayor and it really just comes down to the accountability and responsibility as we deal 

with Non-Appropriated Funds because that's actual cash collected on-site within an agency and we want to 

ensure that whatever comes in is actually accounted for and expended appropriately. So just, you understand 

the magnitude of this Madam Mayor, and Mr. Agustin, I'm sure you do. And this is one of the authorization 

that you as executive manager had requested. The authorization to establish a special fund, the Non­

Appropriated Funds a few years ago, so that you can be able to expend it as you see fit in accordance with the 

laws to take care of some of your operational needs. So that's where we, I mean it's been two years. If the OP A 

had not conducted this performance audit, $55,000 of unaccounted for cash from bus fares would never have 

been reconciled, would never have been reconciled. And I say that because the OP A is a third party outside of 

the entity, looking at the paperwork and when that was identified, it was recognized as unaccounted for cash 

where the contractor immediately stepped in and remitted the $55,000. So, it's not a question of challenging 

and saying no, that was not the case, it was recognized as an unaccounted-for cash that was otherwise 

generated by the agency for the services that you provide the community that could have been utilize 

specifically in the last two years for other operational requirements. 
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Chairman Aguon: 

So that's what we're here for in terms of looking forward. What have you done? What are your plans? What 

are your timelines? Who have you identified to be responsible for this cash accounting process, especially with 

Myra leaving. Myra, on behalf of the members of the legislature and our people, we want to thank you for 

your service to the community. You have been invaluable to Mr. Agustin and to the board members over the 

past several years, you'll be missed but we need to make sure that we fill the gap in terms of your absence and 

your departure from the department. So, I thank you. 

Ms. Myra Abayas: 

Thank you very much Mr. Chair and Senators. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Thank you. I'm going to open the questioning now to the members of the body. Senators San Agustin, any 

questions? 

Senator Joe S. San Agustin: 

Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know, just looking at your listing of the results of OPA, one specific question Mr. 

Agustin. When was the mass transit, Guam Regional Transit Au thority created and when did you take over? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

The Guam Regional Transit Authority was created March 2009. 

Senator Joe S. San Agustin: 

2009. And when did you take over, sir? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

September 2014. 

Senator Joe S. San Agustin: 

September 2014. And what happened in 2014. I'm trying to be very specific Mr. Agustin so I just don't want to 

beat around the bush for you. I'm looking at this OPA report, it talks about April 2016 till March 2018 and I'm 

looking at these great papers you're giving out. GRTA check register. Your recommendation for your, I guess, 

your SOP and stuff like that and you've been around in the Gov Guam for a while, am I correct? Rick, you've 

been around, right? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

About 18 months of the Port Authority. 

Senator Joe S. San Agustin: 

Okay. So, I know, other than the mayor's office being very well knowledgeable about NAF, but so is DOE, and 

DOE has been on the news about NAF forever. So, we want to talk about NAF and if you need any help, I 

know that DOE would have helped you. I would have asked, if you needed help you could have just reached 

over and asked me. But I'm going to ask most of them to reach out and help you, on what you're doing. 

They've got internal auditors that can help you, because I understand where the OPA's coming from. 
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Senator Joe S. San Agustin: 

They can only lead you to the door, it's up to you know to walk in the door and figure out what you need. 

What just bothers me a little bit Mr. Agustin, is that March 2018. It's September. When we met last year, 

remember we talked about GRTA and you asked me, you needed funding, you needed a source of funding. 

Currently if I'm correct, you're being funded by the Liquid Fuel Tax. How is your funding? Is it true the 

liquid Fuel Tax through DPW? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

The Liquid Fuel Tax is something that we share or DPW shares -

Senator Joe S. San Agustin: 

Are you being funded sir, that's my question 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

No. 

Senator Joe S. San Agustin: 

You're not being. How are you being funded then? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

The Guam Highway Fund. 

Senator Joe S. San Agustin: 

Guam Highway Fund, and how much do you receive sir? The reason, what I'm trying to get at is number one, 

$55,000 what OPA finds. Mass transit or Guam Regional Transit started in 2009, 2014 we're finding out there's 

$55,000 unaccounted for. I'm just curious before you got on board, how much money was lost? I remember in 

the past, I remember I even brought this up to you last year, why hasn't somebody thought of putting parking 

meters all over the place to help your funding. Everybody parks everywhere and nobody's providing you 

funding in some source.1 want to help you. I want to be able to help everybody out there that needs a ride to 

get around Guam. But I need to see that the Guam Regional Transit Authority is going to be efficient. Not just 

a bunch of vehicles running around the road and not having true accountability, because I know, and I'm 

almost sure you have your own checking account. What monies receive, you know where it's going to go, 

what you need to pay. It's basic. It's not a lot, it's not a hard course and you're familiar, I'm a former tax 

investigator. I know exactly what you need to do to count for money and I just bothers me that, March 2018, 

Mr. Agustin, and I'm. If you're trying to find a course, being the oversight, chair of education, I would have 

had Mr. Underwood found you a course or I would have even asked Dr. Okada to find you a course to help 

you out. I mean it's that easy sir. I would only ask you, reach out, fan to us. You need help, reach out because 

I'm willing to help you. I want to see the Guam Regional Transit Authority succeed. We have too many cars on 

the road. There's a lot of people who'd love to get on the bus. I know a lot of family members that have ridden 

the bus, but they want the bus to be on time. They want the bus. And you know, you and I, like we said, we 

talked last year. I want to help you. I want to help everybody on Guam. Not just necessarily you, because 

times have changed, whether it be somebody else, even like the Mayor, she'll be retired, she'll move on, but I 

like to see. 
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Senator Joe S. San Agustin: 

After reading this OPA report, I'm like, wow. Mr. Agustin, I extend my hand to help you and your agency. 

Please reach out, and you don't need to rebut anything. I understand the dilemma you're in. I just wanted to 

express that. I just hate to see your staff get a beating throughout the remainder of the year and they really 

can' t get their foot into solid foundation where when the OPA starts going over another performance audit, 

they' re gonging to find the same things. If you need some support, I think John Fernandez will help you. If 

you need a course, I think Dr. Christ at DOG or Dr. Okada will find a way to help you guys for a course, if you 

really need it and if that's the kind of help you need, I know we can reach out for you. Okay? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

And I will reach out for you. 

Senator Joe S. San Agustin: 

Thank you, sir. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Thank you, Senator San Agustin, Senator Lee? 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you all for joining us today. In an earlier response to the chairman, Mr. 

Agustin, you w ere mentioning, and I had questions about this too in terms of the OPA audit and their 

concerns about putting proper accounting protocols in place and you said that you would have your board 

secretary and the acting ASO be sent to training, is that correct? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

That's correct. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

Where are you sending them? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

If the training reviews that they have it at GCC or one of the training establishment here on Guam, then that's 

who we will send them to. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

Okay, and you were saying that they'd be trained in Excel or QuickBooks? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Excel or QuickBooks so that we can have a better understanding on how to capture all of the debits and credits 

and vouchers and everything else that we have. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

Okay. Just so that you're aware, there' s also a lot of free Excel and QuickBooks online training that's available 

to them and they could totally take advantage of them at any time. They wouldn't have to wait to sign up for a 

class at GCC. 
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Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

That being said, I want to ask you, you know, you mentioned that Myra is leaving us and I also want to thank 

you Myra for your service to the government, but I wanted to ask you, more holistically, do you have 

succession planning in place? What is your succession plan? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

The succession plan is what is the Department of Administration process. If I need an accountant for example, 

first I have to be that position have to be open. Or given to GRTA. Then -

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

So, for example, Myra's position, you have somebody that's in place? You have an acting ASO that will take 

over for Myra. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

No, this is only going to be there in the acting capacity because Myra's position based on the budget, I believe 

we cannot hire from -

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

So, you don't have a succession plan for your agency in place? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

No no no. the succession plan would be, I would go to DOA. I have a vacancy for Myra, please send me 

somebody so we can interview them. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

So, you don't have anybody within your agency that you're training. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Yes. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

To come into these positions. That's a succession plan sir. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

I do have Jennifer. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

Okay, so your succession plan, has it been approved by the board? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

The board did not approve my succession. This is an interim plan. Jennifer needs to be qualified to qualify as 

the ASO. If she's' not qualified, she's only there holding down the position until we can find somebody 

qualified. 
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Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

So, the succession plan is really based on the position vacancy, whether the funding is available, and DOA 

would let us know who is qualified for the position and then they will send those people to me for an 

interview panel and then we'll make the selection. That is the succession plan that I understand from the 

Government of Guam. I just can't say that okay, Jennifer you'll be in this position for six months and then 

you'll be the administrator by default. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

And I think that some of the challenges that we're finding government-wide is that you know1 in these 

agencies, we have people longtime public servants that have served in their capacities that have incredible 

institutional knowledge and then they get ready for retirement and we don't really have people that we're 

training up for the weeks and the months and the years to stop into their place and so that's what I mean when 

I say succession planning and you need to be able to come up with a concrete plan, have that plan approved, 

reviewed by your board and approved, sir and so that's really something that you should take a look at, not 

just for this particular position and it's an incredibly important one, but for all of the other people that are 

employed with GRTA. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

I understand Senator. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

Okay, also. 

Ms. Myra Abayas: 

Senator can I add more to it? 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

Sure. 

Ms. Myra Abayas: 

Okay. Since decided to retire at the end of the fiscal year, Jennifer is now an acting AA. Administrative 

Assistant because I'm still sitting on the AO position. Okay. So, what we did, we cut our GGl to make her __ 

detailed to lAA while she is on the AA position, I am training her. Okay. Now once my position is completely 

vacated, then we are going to cut a GGl for recruitment for my replacement. But right now, Jennifer is acting 

as administrative assistant doing all, mostly, 99% of my present duties and responsibilities are being assigned 

to her, and I am overseeing her. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

Thank you, Ms. Myra. Mr. Agustin, we also hear time and time again from our riders, you know, they come 

into our office, they call our office and there's constant complaints that the buses are late, that maybe we have 

some issues with the drivers and it just reduces services overall. So, my question to you is how many vans do 

we have in the fleet? 
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Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

We have 12 vans and 11 buses. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

12 vans. Of those vans, how many are operational? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Let me get out my notes. Right now, none of the buses are -

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

I'm sorry, let's just go with vans first. So how many vans, there's 12 vans in the fleet. I asked how many are 

operational? 

Chairman Aguon: 

Senator Lee, I'm going to allow you to get a response of this, but we're going to isolate this particular oversight 

hearing, specifically to what the agenda item is, and that is the OPA Non-Appropriated Funds report, 

specificaily and then we would consider subsequent hearing. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

We will provide that information right after this meeting and we get back to the office and we would give it to 

you. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

So, you're not sure how many vans are in operation? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

I know how many we have. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

I apologize Mr. Chair. I just want to follow up with one additional question. So 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

We've got 6 vans that are operational 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

Okay. Then how many buses are in the fleet? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

11 buses. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

11 buses. And how many of those buses are operational? 
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Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

We do not have any GRTA bus that is operational. Let me go further. We were waiting for a long-term 

$100,000 NAF funded, IFB in the interim, we use our own NAF for $25,000 and we had a short-term bus repair 

program. However, that $25,000 is already being used up. So, buses do break, you bring them in for batteries 

one day and the next day, they break down for transmission. So, the $25,000 we already spent. And we're 

waiting for the $100,000 to be approved so we can award to the next vendor. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

So, you used Non-Appropriated funds to repair the buses, but just so I'm clear, you have 12 vans in the fleet 

and only half of them are operational, so six. You have 11 buses in the fleet and and none of them are 

operational as of today. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Yes. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

And you've exhausted all of your Non-Appropriated Funds attempting to repair these vehicles? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

No, I have not exhausted all of mine Non-Appropriated Funds. The $25,000 that was identified is almost 

exhausted. We're waiting for the $100,000, IFB to be awarded. And if that does not get awarded, then we will 

go out again for a $25,000 purchase. We are allowed up to $25,000. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

And what's the timeline on that $100,000? I'm just very concerned Mr. Agustin because no buses are working, 

not one. Not one out of the 11 in your fleet and only half of the vans are working. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

I understand that Senator. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

Do you? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

I understand that Senator, we've done our part to request procurement to award an IFB and I was told that it 

was going to be awarded on the 8th of this month. The 81h, which is Saturday. Whether that's going to be 

actually the award date, it remains to be seen, but we have done our part since May 2017 to get this JFB. And 

here it is already September 2018. 

Chairman Aguon: 

We'll have a possible follow on oversight hearing that would deal with the operational issues as well as the 

buses. Senator Lee, so. 
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Ms. Myra Abayas: 

Senator Lee, just for everyone's information, the $100,000 for the repairs and maintenance, we used the NAF 

funds for it because we don't have money for the local budget. So, we use the $100,000 to fund the repairs and 

maintenance invitation for bid. The bid process has been completed. It's just it hasn't been awarded yet. So, we 

are waiting for GSA to award contract or to cut the purchase order and give it to whoever the lowest bidder. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
Additionally, we have never been given maintenance money from local funds until I think it's projected for 
next year, is when we're actually going to get money from local funds for maintenance. In the meantime, 
we've been using our NAF. 

Chainnan Aguon: 

Okay, Senator Lee, any other questions on the Non-Appropriated Fund performance audit? Thank you, 

Senator Lee, Senator Nelson? Any questions? 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. San Agustin, what is GRTA's mission? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

It's Agustin Ma' am. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. San-What did I say? Mr. San Agustin. Mr. Agustin 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Otherwise I' d be related to the Senator here. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Dispensa yu'. Mr. Agustin. Senator San Agustin was being so nice in the questioning I forgot that I thought 

you guys were related, so. So, Mr. Agustin, please forgive me. What is GRTA's mission? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

To provide reliable transportation at an affordable cost. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

To provide affordable, reliable and accessible island-wide public transportation services. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Yes. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Okay. So that's your mission statement. 
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Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

That's my mission statement, but I don't believe that's correct, providing island-wide because we do not have 

the assets to provide island-wide. We follow FTA rules. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

And how long have you been the executive manager? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

September 2014. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

September 2014, so almost 4 years, no? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

That's right. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Okay. So, because we are restricted to inquiring about Non-Appropriated Funds, thank you Mr. Chair for 

making that very clear. The shorMerm solution that you presented before the body, is hire a bookkeeping firm 

to maintain all records, invoices, vouchers and a monthly report to GRTA executive manager so that this will 

be reported during the GRTA monthly board meeting. What is the cost of this bookkeeping firm? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

We do not know and that's why we're going to go out and ask. I was told that it's probably $500 a month, 

maybe $1,000 a month. $1,000 a month bookkeeping firm I think is less than to hire an accountant with benefits 

at $36,000 for example. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Okay so you have not bid for that yet? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

No. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Okay. What is the purpose of the administrative officer? 

Ms. Myra Abayas: 

I am in charge of budget. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

So, bookkeeping Ms. Myra? 

Ms. Myra Abayas: 

Actually, accounting is included in it, because -
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Senator Telena Nelson: 

Do you also do invoices and vouchers? 

Ms. Myra Abayas: 

It's figures and also, I'm in charge of the overall procurement of the agency and the HR personnel issues. 

Okay. This NAF is brand new to us, okay. We only opened the bank account in 2015, okay. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

So, it's not brand new, it's about 3 years old now. 

Ms. Myra Abayas: 

Yes. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Okay. 

Ms. Myra Abayas: 

Okay. But then our activities, our NAF activities are very simple and not that much or big volume of activities 

that we are doing every day. Okay, the volume is such very limited okay. So, I was thinking, we were thinking 

before that since our activities in the NAF, we didn't really think about, you know, the bank recon and support 

because each item that we spend, okay. Let's say we cut the check, we can easily explain or identify what did 

we use that check for or the payment for because also whenever we procure any item, we follow the 

procurement rules and regs. We get three quotations before we cut the check and -

Senator Telena Nelson: 

I know, Ms. Myra, I understand you have a lot on your plate. 

Ms. Myra Abayas: 

I have a lot on my plate yes. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

l understand that and I commend you for the work that you've been doing. 

Ms. Myra Abayas: 

Yes. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

And I thank you for that. 

Ms. Myra Abayas: 

You're welcome. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

But you are not the executive manager. 
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Ms. Myra Abayas: 

I'm not 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Okay. And Mr. Agustin, what is the chief planners position there? What does the chief planner do? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

The chief planner plans our program moving forward. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

I'm sorry sir, can you please speak into the mic? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Our chief planner plans our program for forward getting direction from me that when I first came in the chief 

planner, Mr. Pilipina was a PC3. He was doing PC3, PC2 and plan our work. So, he was overwhelmed. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Okay, so if the chief planner gets direction from you, that makes you the subject-matter expert, right? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Not necessarily. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

So, they hired an executive manager that would not be a subject matter expert in transportation? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

I would not be subject matter expert on all government issues. I am a subject matter expert on transportation 

issues. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

No, we are just talking about transportation issues. Not government issues. We are talking about 

transportation and program coordinator IV. What is the program coordinator IV? I'm going through your 

organizational chart and this is just the people you directly oversee. So what does your program coordinator 

IV do? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Our program coordinator IV got on board less than a year -

Senator Telena Nelson: 

But they are a program coordinator IV, which means they are qualified and experienced for the job they were 

hired into. They've been through levels one to three and understand program coordination. So, what does 

your program coordinator IV do? 
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Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

My program coordinator does everything that you mentioned, but she's not too familiar with -

Senator Telena Nelson: 

I did not mention anything, I am asking you what they do. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

They coordinate federal grants, which is what they learned from Rally. Particularly in the area of 

transportation. FT A is slightly different than the other agencies that we get money from you have to 

understand FT A circulars. So, this has been trained up, the hand off between the PC4 and the previous PC, 

who is now our chief planner has been completed. The PC4 has not gone through transportation 101 if I may 

say that. She's scheduled to go through transportation training. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Who authorized the hiring of PC4 if they don't know anything about transportation 101? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

The PC4 comes in as a PC4. We can train people up to a very specific narrow field like transportation. A PC4 

can do -

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Well wouldn't you want to hire someone that's well versed in transportation, especially at that level? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

When people, when I get -

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Especially at the most basic they have not gone through transportation 101? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

When I get a list of people to be interviewed by DOA, that's the list of people that I interview and the one that 

comes closest is who I select. We cannot just select and wait and wait and wait, because. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

Okay, what is your salary of your PC4? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Say again? 

Senator Telena Nelson: 

What is the salary of your PC4? How much does your PC4 make annually? 
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Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
I can give you the exact amount, but I can guess right now, about $50,000 annually. I do not know what 

direction this set of question is going, Senator. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 
Okay. Because if you're going to pay someone $50,000 I would expect you as the executive manager to see that 

they are more than qualified and do not need to be trained on transportation 101. That's the direction I'm 

getting, because your mission statement is to provide affordable, reliable and accessible island-wide public 

transportation services. This mission statement basically says that you, your buses will be at the locations on 

time, not having people wait for three hours and some of them are disabled customers. That you will have 

affordable transportation, which means in page 9 of the OPA report, there would not be $350,260 in 

unauthorized charges that are unaccounted for, nor would there be an additional $217,450 of charges that 

exceeded the authorized appeal amounts. So, your affordable mission statement to provide affordable, your 

practices negate that. You not being able to service our island residents on time, which is reliable negates that 

when our buses are non-operational of they come two to three hours late and accessible island-wide 

transportation services. You hiring a PC4 at a PC4 level and specifically stating that they need to be versed in 

transportation 101 does not provide for the services that the people demand. I'm not finished yet. This plan 

that you did and this, you specifically stated that you had to hire an expert in Excel to create an Excel 

spreadsheet. This one right here, the sample that was passed out. It is beyond me what kind of expertise you 

would need to have to balance this kind of budget when you have a administrative officer, a PC4, a chief 

planner, you as the executive manager, and then now you want to hire two new accountants and what is the 

customer base. How many people do you service? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Our ridership average about 234, 235,000 riders. May I now. 

Senator Telena Nelson: 
That's more than the people of Guam. What is your customer based, how many people do you service? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
We have about 460 people on the paratransit. Not fixed route. Not including fixed routes. 

-----

Senator Telena Nelson: 
Well apparently, because we don't have enough buses because they keep on breaking down. 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 
So, senator, may I answer some of the questions? 

Senator Telena Nelson: 
No no Mr. Agustin. I just don't, we have come here time and time again. I mean we've come here time and 

time again to look at the people who are riding these buses, some of them are disabled and we can't have any 

reliable service. 
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Senator Telena Nelson: 

And you've been in this job for four years. I don't understand why you are looking to hire two accountants for 

a 460-personnel customer base after four years. I don't understand why you have to hire a bookkeeping firm to 

manage your records, invoices, and vouchers. For me it seems like you're just. Mr. Agustin, all I'm asking you 

to do, in this oversight hearing, because we are supposed to look at all the facts. We're supposed to examine 

the OPA report, we're supposed to examine the shortcomings and we're supposed to encourage you to make 

the way forward and we've been having oversight hearings, thank you Mr. Chair, but with over half a million 

dollars in money that is unauthorized and then we're having with non-appropriation funds and then we're 

just discussing a professional to do specifically Excel worksheets. It just doesn't cut it. You're not meeting your 

mission statement and I don't know what else to tell you. Perhaps my expectation is too high for an executive 

manager to make sure that the bus services and the paratransit services are working for the people of Guam. 

Perhaps my expectation is too high for an executive manager that makes over $80,000 to perform something 

that is the standard, and if that's the case then perhaps I'm in the wrong. That's all Mr. Chair. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Thank you very much Senator Nelson. Any final comments from anyone in the panel? If not, we do have -

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

I do have, I do have a comment. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Standby. Senator Lee you have a question for the mayor? 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

Thank you, yes. Actually, madam chair, if you could just maybe in closing and I'm grateful to the chairman for 

having this oversight hearing and for calling for the audit and for our friends at the OP A for taking this 

opportunity to give us some really good data, basing some of our questions on. Just in ge~eral, I feel like 

GRTA has made minimal improvement. We come here time and time again. We take a looit at additional data. 

We ask questions based on what the media has given us. There have been countless oversight hearings. The 

OPA has issued their audit reports, but I really feel like management should be proactive and in every ~~p_of 

the way it's been totally reactive and you know, a problem is pointed out and then you go back and you fix it, 

but there's no proactive approach in terms of this management and the management sty1eafid~so I wanted io 

ask you madam chair what your thoughts are about this. Are you confident in the direction that management 

has taken GRTA? 

Board Chairwomen Louise Rivera: 
Yes, I am. 1 am confident. If you have seen how it was done before being in a hole in the wall down at DOA. 

' .. 
When we first came in we established it in 2009, you know for it to be an autonomous agency. I mean now. 

Things, you know, we're hiring people, we're getting things moving. We're trying to fix the schedule we want 

to. 

SUITE 503, DNA BLDC. 238 ARCHBISHOP FLORES STREET HAGA TNA. GUAM 96910 26 of 31 
PHONE: (671) 475-CUMlll (t86112) I PAX: (671) 475-GUM3 (4863) I EMAIL: ACl10N4CUAM•GMAIL.COtf .., • ' : ..- , 

WWW.FRANKACUONJR.COM 



Board Chairwomen Louise Rivera: 
There's so much that we want to do, but we don't want to freak people out with a change and of course of 

putting up meter. There's so much ways we can make revenue for this agency. Even as we mentioned alone, 

the $100,000 that we took from the bus fares from the NAP. We turned it into DOA to get a purchase order 

from GSA for maintenance of the busses. I'm very honored and I'm really glad we didn't lose the money. We 

almost lost the funding for these buses we were supposed to procure -

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

And why is that? 

Board Chairwomen Louise Rivera: 

Because it was taking too long. You know the whole process. The interference of others that were not satisfied 

with the specs. You know, things like that. I mean I came up, I was willing to join this board as a member of 

the Mayor's Council of Guam because I see the need for our people. So many around us, even myself you 

know-

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

And you're satisfied with the way that things are operating at GRTA. 

Board Chairwomen Louise Rivera: 

We are not perfect and we have been doing nothing but ask for help. You know, I remember talking to all of 

you when you were all running meet the candidates at the mall. I wanted to find out what was- How can you 

help because of hearing where all the funding is going to and even our request to the OPA to do this audit. To 

do a audit. I'm so happy I've been at a roundtable discussion where the OPA Doris Brooks came out and said 

you have funding going to every other place but to transportation. It was recognized. Everybody please see 

that. See that the building was given away. We have no place to go now. Now, we're in DPW. 

Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

But we are also seeing that some of these funds are being mismanaged. 

Board Chairwomen Louise Rivera: 

Well, we're trying to correct that. I want nothing but transparency. We want to do everything correctly, but 

now with whars happening now is you know, there's somebody parading saying fire him. You that's just their 

intention is fire him. Get rid of him. Replace him with this guy. My husband used to drive for Fleet Services 

back then when it was Bob was handling it. You know, I've known the bus system for the longest time too. 

People will criticize me saying you' re a mayor. You never tried riding the bus. I had a single parent. I grew 

riding the bus. You know, things have changed . I worked hard so that I can have a car so I don't have to wait 

for the bus anymore, but it would be great to save gas and park it and go where I need to go on a reliable 

transportation that comes on time, but then there is also a lot of wonderful guests that we have on island that 

have come and are really happy with the bus service that we have. You know we have there's so many bus 

riders out there -
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Senator Regine Biscoe Lee: 

But I just don't see that happening if there's no buses that are in operation. 

Board Chairwomen Louise Rivera: 

Well we want to get it in operation. So, we're showing you that we have had money put in since last year. We 

need help to get the purchase order out. We've identified making use of the bus fares to get these buses fixed. 

We want it fixed. We want it all running out there. Those buses are beautiful. I'm so proud of that Ni hi, ta fan 

hanao. We want it to work for everybody, but you know. Like I said. The way things are going now because 

we service over 2,000 people a day and then there's, you have a select few complainers that want to just tear us 

down. We have to look at everything, the bigger picture. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Okay, mayor. If you can conclude your statements because we do have some people in the audience who 

would like to provide comments on the non-appropriated funds. 

Board Chairwomen Louise Rivera: 

Thank you. 

Chainnan Aguon: 

Okay, to all the panel members. Mr. Augustin? Any final comments? Can you tum on the mic please? 

Executive Manager Enrique Agustin: 

Yes, Mr. Chair. I provided two pieces of paper. I was asked several times how long I have been with this 

organization so I think it's time for me to answer what we've accomplished. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Mr. Augustin, you have provided the committee members with a copy of your documents so we will glean 

through it a little later. Okay? Thank you very much Mr. Agustin and thank you very much to OPA for 

initiating this particular performance audit. Thank you very much. Some of your findings were very critical in 

the process and in this particular case, there's got to be some fixes to the system so thank you for your 

participation in this. Thank you, folks. I do see any statements with regards to non-appropriated funds folks 

because that's the item on the agenda. I did not expand it specifically because we wanted to locus on some of 

the issues associated with this fund, and if it's deemed necessary then we will have an oversight hearing with 

regards to the operational activities at GRTA so is there anyone in the audience? You're all dismissed please. 

Panel members, thank you. Anyone in the audience who would like to provide any comments with regards to 

non-appropriated funds. We have, if any of you are going to provide comments, p lease come forward. 

Ms. Porter, if you can identify yourself for the record and please provide your statement. 

Ms. Ginger Porter: 

Yes, I'm Ginger Porter. 
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Chainnan Aguon: 

If you're going to read, I know we have a copy of your testimony Ms. Porter. If I can ask you to highlight 

certain portions because each committee member was provided a copy. 

Ms. Ginger Porter: 

Yes, l will only provide those comments appropriate to the NAF funding. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Thank you, Ms. Porter. 

Ms. Ginger Porter: 

(WRITTEN TESTIMONY A TT ACHED1 

... signed by Erk Flores and provided for payment. 

I have questioned the use several times of GRTA's personal use of RA V4 and Ford F150 truck for they do 

appear as some minor repairs from the NAF. The board minutes of July 18th report that the board had 

designated two vehicles as 24-hour vehicles, one for north and one for the south and I think it would behoove 

this panel to question the frequency of call outs as to how those vehicles are put into service outside the hours 

of normal working hours 8:00am to S:OOpm. If the responses fail to meet the test, it would indicate that public 

dollars for fuel and maintenance are going towards personnel use under the permission of the executive 

manager and the board chairwoman. Perhaps this agreement should be questioned by this committee. It has 

the appearance to me of a trade-off for the use of the GRT A 2006 Kia Van that is assigned to Mayor Rivera's 

Tutuha Office. Although there are procedures for transferring equipment between agencies, the van remains 

on the GRTA inventory and is noted on GRTA's schedule for vehicle registration. 

The NAF audit and the requested FOIA documents raise a red flag on the financial operations of GRT A under 

the management of Mr. Enrique Agustin and oversight of Board Chairwomen Louise Rivera. Management has 

ignored proper governmental expenditure processes in spite of completing government procurement training. 

Actions in regards to NAP fund expenditures have been questioned by GRTA staff, with a plea for help for 

external review and intervention. Supervision of management under the chairmanship of Lquise Rivera has 

been loosely applied. The Chairwomen is known to avoid placing anything in writing, relying on verbal 

communications. Therefore, there is little to no documentation of corrective action, communication, or 

directives. Both the executive manager and the chairwomen rely too much on jungle rules and 'Father Knows 

Best' management and this is I believe grinding the operations of GRTA into the ground. Although the 

chairwomen has recently stated that GRTA is headed in a good direction, I beg to differ. The present 

management has not provided a futures plan, a coordinated transportation plan, a succession plan, or a 

budgetary plan to increase revenue. He has pushed away individuals who can provide him assistance. The 

Governor provided a public statement requesting his resignation. This body, this legislative committee has 

chastised his inability to properly respond to their questioning and his failure to ensure public safety within 

operations. Unfortunately, the riding public is bearing the brunt of his actions and the general public is seeing 

questionable expenditure of their tax dollars and that includes the NAF fund. 
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Ms. Ginger Porter: 

His sole supporter has been that of the board chairwomen. In all the years, I have been involved in searching 

and selecting personnel, I know that given the opening of this position, there is talent in this community that 

can provide better management and future direction for GRTA. Thank you for your time. 

Chairman Aguon: 

Thank you very much Ms. Porter for your statements and providing the committee. If [ can ask the 

chairwomen and Mr. Augustine to please take note of some of the comments that were provided and we'll 

leave it for your consumption. Any other individuals in the audience who would like to provide comments on 

the non-appropriated funds and like the chair shared a little earlier, should there be a need to proceed with an 

oversight hearing on GRTA subsequent to this day then that would be under consideration. Anyone else? If 

there are no other comments or individuals who would like to provide public testimony then this concludes 

the oversight hearing on the GRT A non-appropriated funds and on behalf of the committee we like to thank 

al1 those who provided testimony and most especially the audience who participated in today's session. Thank 

you very much and Si yu'us ma'ase. 

The Oversight Hearing was Adjourned at 4:25 PM. 
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II. WRITTEN TESTIMONY 

The following individuals submitted written testimonies to the Committee on Guam U.S. Military Buildup, Infrastructure, 
and Transportation before, during, or after the scheduled Oversight Hearing on Wednesday, September 51

h, 2018 at 3:00 
PM: 

1. Ms. Ginger Porter, M. Ed. 
2. Mr. Enrique Agustin, Executive Manager, Guam Regional Transit Authority 

IV. FINDINGS & RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Committee on Guam U.S. Militarv Buildup. Infrastructure. and Transportation hereby reports on the Oversight Hearing on 

the Guam Regional Transit Authority with the recommendation to report out. 
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1. Objectives: 

Guam Regional Transit Authority 
Non·Appropriated Funds 
Exit Conference Agenda 

Monday, August 20, 2018 at 2:30 pm 

a. To determine whether GRTA's Fund was properly managed and accounted for in 
accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and best practices. 

2. Scope: April 2016 to March 2018 

3. Results of Audit 
1. No accounting system and lack of basic controls 

H. $5.SK in Bus Fares Not Deposited 
iii. No Monitoring or Reporting of GRT A Fund 
iv. No Significant Deficiencies on Disbursements 

4. Conclusion 
a. We found that the GRTA Fund was not properly managed and accounted for in 

accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and best practices. ORT A management 
did not prioritize internal controls over the Fund to reduce risks of theft and misuse of 
GRTA's program income. As a result, $55 thousand (K) in GRTA bus fares reported 
in the contracted bus operator's (Contractor) invoices were not deposited into the 
Fund. 

5. Recommendations 
a. Include specifications for the process of depositing bus f arcs co1lected by the 

Contractor in its fonnal contract, including more detailed reporting of bus fares and 
ticket sales (i.e., cash, check, credit card payments) collected by the Contractor and 
each subcontractor to allow GRT A to reconcile against deposits; 

b. Assign staff to actively monitor receipts and verify the completeness of bus fare 
deposits; 

c. To adopt proper control activities including establishing effective policies and SOPs, 
maintaining a check register, and performing bank reconciliations; 

d. Send appropriate staff to NAF management training; and 
e. Be more transparent and accountable by reporting the Fund's activity to those 

charged with governance including the GRT A Board and if requested by the 
Legislature or the Governor. 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Guam Regional Transit Authority Non-Appropriated Funds 

OPA Report No. 18-06, August 2018 

Our audit of the Guam Regional Transit Authority's (GRTA) Non-Appropriated Funds (Fund) 
found that the lack of internal controls over the Fund poses significant risks of theft and misuse of 
GRTA's program income. As a result, $41 thousand (K) in ORTA bus fares reported by the 
contracted bus operator (Contractor), and an additional $14K later identified by GRTA, were not 
deposited in the Fund. This occurred because ORTA did not: 

• Adopt and maintain an accounting system for the Fund; 
• Have basic control activities, such as maintaining a check register, performing monthly 

bank reconciliations, and having effective policies and standard operating procedures 
(SOPs); and 

• Report the Fund's financial activity to the GRT A Board, Governor, Legislature, or OP A. 

GR TA management opened a checking account mainly to receive bus fare collections from the 
Contractor. The Fund's checking account movement from its opening on April 7, 2016 to March 
31, 2018 is as follows: 

T:ili ll· 2: <,]~I \I u11d .\c\J\ 1\\ 

Beginning balance, April 7, 2016 
Receipts: 

Bus fare collections 
Insurance proceeds 
Others 
Total receipts 

Disbursements: 
Transfers to Department of Administration (DOA) 
Parts and repairs/services 
Petty cash 
Equipment 
Office supplies and other 
Service charge 
Total disbursements 

Ending balance, March 31, 2018 

No Accounting System and Lack of Bask Controls 

$ 

$ 

Total 

212,50-0 
20,000 

303 
232,803 

100,000 
20,220 

3,209 
2,650 
1,132 

72 
127,283 

105,520 

According to 12 Guam Code Annotated (GCA) Chapter 6 § 6204 (a), GRTA shall adopt and 
maintain a system of accounting for the Fund, which is in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. Although ORTA kept and maintained a separate file of the Fund, GRTA 
did not have basic controls to address typical risks to cash, such as misuse and theft. For example: 

• A check register to record all transactions was not maintained. 
• All receipts were not supported and reconciled to ensure all bus fares were deposited. 
• Monthly bank reconciliations were not performed to ensure any differences between 

GRTA's records and the bank's records were identified and investigated. 



• The Fund's SOPs were not formally adopted and do not provide a check and balance to 
ensure the Fund is safeguarded from misuse and theft. 

SSSK in Bus Fares Not Deposited 
During our audit, we could not account for $41K in bus fares reported in the Contractor's monthly 
bus fare remittances in the Fund's bank statements. After we communicated the $41 K discrepancy 
to GRTA management, GRTA identified an additional $14K in the fonn of credit card and check 
payments that the Contractor did not include in monthly bus fare remittances . In addition, we found 
collections that were not timely deposited ranging from four to 256 days after the service period. 
This illustrates that GRTA does not actively monitor and reconcile the Contractor's deposits to 
ensure that all GRTA bus fares were deposited. Due to GRTA's lack of reconciliation and lack of 
detailed reports submitted by the contractor, there is a possibility of undeposited ticket sales and 
bus fares, especially for periods outside of our audit scope. 

No Monitoring or Reporting of GRT A Fund 
GRTA is required to be audited annually by an independent certified public accountant or the 
OPA, and submit an annual report of the Fund to the Governor and Legislature within 120 days 
after the end of the fiscal year. This is the first audit since the Fund's establishment in April 2016. 
In addition, GRTA has not regularly reported the Fund's activity to the GRTA Board, Governor, 
Legislature, or OPA. Our analysis of bus fare revenues showed significant fluctuations from April 
2016 to March 2018. By monitoring and reporting revenues timely, management could have 
identified and further discussed these anomalies with the Contractor to correct errors, if any. 

No Significant Deficiencies on Disbursements 
Our testing of 19 of 30 total disbursements, or $12SK of $127K, did not find significant 
deficiencies. However, we noted four disbursements amounting to $689 that did not have proper 
approval. Of the 19, there were seven petty cash disbursements totaling $1 ,609, which were mainly 
for food purchases of $843, or 52%. Other purchases included supplies and others of $548, or 34%, 
and parts and repairs of $218, or 14%. Although purchases were justified, we caution GRTA to 
refer to Attorney General (AG) Opinion No. 95-1340, which limits food purchases with 
government funds to entertainment expenses for official purposes. 

Conclusion and Recommendations 
GRTA management did not prioritize internal controls to safeguard the Fund from risks of theft 
and misuse. GRT A's Administrative Officer stated that GRT A will adopt a form, similar to their 
newly adopted petty cash request reimbursement form, to remedy the lack of documented 
disbursement approvals. 

We recommend the GRTA Executive Manager: (1) adopt proper control activities including 
establishing effective policies and SOPs, maintaining a check register, and performing bank 
reconciliations; (2) send appropriate staff to NAF management or other similar training; (3} include 
specifications for the process of depositing bus fares collected by the Contractor in its formal 
contract; ( 4) assign staff to active I y monitor receipts and verify completeness of bus fare deposits; 
and (5) report the Fund 's activity to those charged with governance. 

Yukari B. Hechanova, CPA, CIA, CGFM, CGAP, CGMA 
Deputy Public Auditor 
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Introduction 

This report presents the results of our perfonnance audit of the Guam RegionaJ Transit Authority's 
(ORTA) Non-Appropriated Funds (Fund). The scope of this audit was from April 2016 through 
March 2018. The audit was initiated after the Office of Public Accountability (OPA) learned that 
ORTA maintains a checking account during the perfonnance audit of OPA Report No. 18-01 
GRTA Procurement and Billing of Public Transit Services, which warranted our separate review. 

The objective of our audit was to detennine whether GRTA's Fund was properly managed and 
accounted for in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and best practices. 

The audit objective, scope, methodology, and prior audit coverage are detailed in Appendices l 
and2. 

Background 
In March 2009, Public Law (P.L.) 30-05 created ORTA to plan services, establish, develop, 
coordinate, promote, own, and operate facilities and services that support public transportation and 
public parking within Guam. ORTA is mandated to (l) operate a system of public transportation 
and (2) establish operational routes, schedules, fares, and policies consistent with the purpose of 
the Authority. 

Public Transit Services 
ORTA offers two types of services: 

• The fixed route service operates on a fixed schedule with designated stops between major 
transfer stations. 

• The paratransit service is provided to Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)-eligible 
passengers. In order to avail of this service, passengers must be certified by ORTA. 

GRT A charges fees for four types of passes for its riders: one-ride, one-day, one-week, and one­
month passes. See Table 1 below for the regular and discounted/paratransit bus fare rates. 

Table I: Bus Fare Rates 
I >isr<lllll(<:d I .in· l).l\\l ,r lfrc:u l.11 

I \pt I' ;11 .111 .111, it I :i 1 1·, I· .111· I' ·"'t'' 
One Ride Pass $0.35 $1.00 
OneDayPass $1.00 $3.00 

One Week Pass $5.00 $15.00 

One Month Pass $20.00 $55.00 

1Students6-18 years and seniors SS years and up are eligible for discowated fare rates. 
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GRTAFund 
In December 2015, GRTA's Board of Directors (Board) authorized the establishment of a bank 
account through GRTA Resolution No. 2016~001. The Board cited Title 12 of the Guam Code 
Annotated (GCA) Chapter 6 § 6204, which allowed the establishment of the GRTA Fund to be 
maintained separate and apart from the other Government of Guam (GovGuam) funds. A checking 
account was officially opened with a local bank in April 2016, which served as the Fund. 

ORTA is required to: 
• Maintain independent records and accounts of the Fund, 
• Have the Fund audited annually by an independent certified public accountant or by the 

OPA, 
• Submit an annual report within 120 days after the end of each fiscal year and, 
• Present special reports within 30 days after the end of each fiscal year, if requested by the 

Governor or Legislature. 

The Fund was created mainly to receive bus fare collections from the contracted bus operator 
(Contractor). The Contractor also subcontracts services when needed from two other parties. The 
fares are deposited directly into the Fund by the Contractor every Monday, Wednesday, and 
Friday. Prior to the Fund's checking account opening, bus fare collections were deposited to the 
Public Transit Fund, a Special Revenue Fund maintained by the Department of Administration 
(DOA) since its establishment in March 2002 through P .L. 26-76. 

Two signatures, from a board member and staff, are required to endorse, sign checks, withdraw 
funds, and operate the account on behalf of ORTA. Specifically, the checking account has four 
authorized signatories- the Board Chairwoman, Board Vice-Chairman, Executive Manager, and 
Administrative Officer. 

Federal Transit Administration Grants and Program Income 
Bus fare collections are considered ''program income" per Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
Circular FTA C 5010.ID, Grant Management Requirements. Program income is gross income 
received by a grantee or subgrantee directly generated by a grant supported activity. GRTA 
received $3.7M in grant funding from FTA from fiscal years (FY) 2016 to FY 2018. FTA grant 
funding was mainly used to purchase buses for its operations. Although GRTA's program income 
is minimal, it plays a crucial part of funding the maintenance and repairs for its buses, bus shelters, 
and other operational expenses. 
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Results of Audit 

Our audit found that the GRT A Fund was not properly managed and accounted for in accordance 
with applicable laws, regulations, and best practices. ORT A management did not prioritize internal 
controls over the Fund to reduce risks of theft and misuse of ORTA 's program income. As a result, 
$55 thousand (K) in ORTA bus fares reported by the Contractor were not deposited into the Fund. 
Specifically, we found that ORTA did not: 

• Adopt and maintain an accounting system for the Fund; 
• Have basic control activities, such as maintaining a check register, perfonning monthly 

bank reconciliations, and having effective policies and standard operating procedures 
(SOPs); and 

• Report the Fund's financial activity to the ORTA Board, Governor, Legislature, or OPA. 

No Accounting System and Lack of Basic Controls 
The Fund's checking account movement collected from bank statements from its opening on April 
7, 2016 to March 31, 2018 resulted in total receipts of $233K and total disbursements including 
outstanding checks of$127K. See Table 2 below for a breakdown of the Fund's checking account 
movement, and Appendix 3 for the bank account activity. 

l'ahk 2: (,RI.\ I und .\l·l1\ Jl) 

Beginning balance, April 7, 2016 
Receipts: 

Bus fare collections 
Insurance proceeds 
Others 
Total receipts 

Disbursements: 
Transfers to DOA 
Parts and repairs/services 
Petty cash 
Equipment 
Office supplies and other 
Service charge 
Total disbursements 

Ending balance, March 31, 2018 

$ 

$ 

Total 

212,500 
20,000 

303 
232,803 

100,000 
20,220 

3,209 
2,650 
1,132 

72 
127,283 
105,520 

According to 12 OCA Chapter 6 § 6204 (a), ORTA shall adopt and maintain a system of 
accounting for the Fund, which is in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
Although ORTA kept and maintained a separate file of the FW1d, GRTA did not have an 
accounting system and basic controls to address typical risks to cash, such as misuse and theft. 
Specifically: 

• No check register was maintained to ensure transactions were documented. 
• No bank reconciliations were performed to lower the risk of differences, errors, or fraud. 
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• No financial reports were prepared or reported to those charged with governance to ensure 
transparency and accountability. 

• Receipts for bus fares were deposited without reviewing supporting documentation to 
ensure completeness of revenues. 

• Certain disbursements were made without proper approvals. 

An accounting system allows an entity to keep track of all transactions and generate reports to aid 
management with decision making. 

The ORTA management did not prioritize internal controls when the Fund was established. In 
order to properly manage and account for the Fund, management should establish an SOP and 
appropriate control activities to reduce exposure of GRTA's program income to opportunities of 
theft and mismanagement. The Fund's current SOPs do not provide a check and balance to ensure 
the Fund is safeguarded from misuse and theft. 

Therefore, we recommend the ORTA Executive Manager, or his designee, adopt proper control 
activities including establishing effective policies and SOPs, maintaining a check register, and 
performing bank reconciliations, and send appropriate staff to NAF management or other similar 
training. 

$55K in Bus Fares Not Deposited 
More than 90% of the Fund's deposits are made up of bus fare collections, which was not 
consistently deposited into the Fund by the Contractor. The Contractor began depositing every 
Monday, Wednesday, and Friday in March 2017. We could not verify these deposit arrangements 
with the Contractor, because as we reported in OPA Report No. 18-01 GRTA Procurement and 
Billing of Public Transit Services, there is no formal contract to define specifications and 
deliverables. 

We identified checks deposited by the Contractor, ranging four days to as late as 256 days after a 
service period. For example, the Contractor had deposited $3K in September 2017 from bus fares 
that were collected in January 2017, a difference of 225 days, or about 8 months. See Appendix 4 
for check details on the days lapsed before deposited. 

Of the $233K total receipts, $144K were bank deposits made by the Contractor for the service 
period April 2016 to March 2018. However, the Contractor reported total collections of$185K in 
its invoices, which included monthly bus fare remittances, a difference of $41 K. See Appendix 5 
for the comparison of bus fares deposited and reported. 

After we communicated the $41K discrepancy to ORTA management, ORTA identified an 
additional $14K in undeposited bus fares during their discussion with the Contractor. The $14K 
was bus fares paid by credit card and checks that the Contractor did not report to GR TA. As a 
result of our finding, the Contractor deposited a total of $55K into the Fund in June 2018. 

The Contractor does not submit a breakdown of credit card and check payment sales. Therefore, 
we could not verify the completeness of the $14K later deposited to the Fund. We were unable to 
reconcile the number and type of riders to amounts collected, which were not consistently reported 
in daily manifests submitted by the Contractor. This illustrates that ORT A did not actively monitor 
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and reconcile the Contractor's deposits to ensure that all GRTA bus fares were deposited. Due to 
GRTA's lack of reconciliation and lack of detailed reports submitted by the Contractor, there is a 
possibility of undeposited ticket sales paid by checks or credit cards, as well as bus fares, especially 
for periods outside of our audit scope. 

Therefore, we recommend the GRTA Executive Manager, or his designee, include specifications 
for the process of depositing bus fares collected by the Contractor in its fonnal contract, including 
more detailed reporting of bus fares and ticket sales (i.e., cash, check, and credit card payments) 
collected by the Contractor and each subcontractor to allow GRTA to reconcile against deposits. 
In addition, we also recommend that the GRTA Executive Manager, or his designee, assign staff 
to actively monitor receipts and verify the completeness of bus fare deposits. 

No Monitoring or Reporting of GRTA Fund 
According to 12 GCA Chapter 6 § 6204 (b) and ( e ), GRT A is required to be audited annually by 
an independent certified public accountant or the OPA, and submit an annual report of the Fund to 
the Governor and Legislature within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year. This is the first audit 
since the Fund's establishment in April 2016. In addition, GRTA has not regularly reported the 
Fund's activity to those charged with governance, including the GRTA Board, Governor, 
Legislature, or OPA. 

Based on our analysis of bus fare revenues in Graph 1 below, we found significant fluctuations 
from April 2016 to March 2018. For example, for the two-year period, monthly deposits averaged 
$8, 766 between April 2016 to August 2017, and then significantly dropped to an average of $6, 754 
between September 2017 to March 2018. See details of Graph 1 in Appendix 6. 

~ 
"' ... 
~ 
0 
0 

Graph 1. Bus Fare Revenue Trend 
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"Note: Periods of July 2016 to August 2016, October 2017 to November 2017, 
and December 2017 to January 2018 were removed from this graph because 
these deposits consisted of bus fares and ticket sales collected for a period two 
months, with no breakdown of amounts collected. 
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The graph also illustrates fluctuations in the fonn of cash, checks, and credit card payments for 
bus fares and ticket sales, as well as fares collected from the contractor and each subcontractor, 
which may indicate the under-reporting of collections. In addition, some revenues were not 
supported by detailed information, therefore, we could not determine if the amounts were collected 
by the Contractor, Subcontractor 1, or Subcontractor 2 and what portion was in cash, check, or 
credit card. By monitoring and reporting revenues timely, management could have identified and 
further discussed these anomalies with the Contractor to correct errors, if any. 

We recommend the GRTA Executive Manager, or his designee, be more transparent and 
accountable by reporting the Fund's activity to those charged with governance including the 
ORT A Board, and if requested by the Legislature, Governor, or OP A. 

No Significant Deficiencies on Disbursements 
GRT A had a total of 30 disbursements from April 2016 to March 2018 totaling $ l 27K. We tested 
19 disbursements amounting to $125K, or 98%, and did not find significant deficiencies. However, 
we noted four disbursements amounting to $689 that did not have proper approval. According to 
GRTA's Administrative Officer, GRTA will adopt a form, similar to their newly adopted petty 
cash request reimbursement form, to remedy the lack of documented approvals. 

Of the 19 disbursements, seven totaling were $1,609 for petty cash, which consisted mainly of 
food. supplies, and parts and repairs. See Graph 2 below for breakdown of total disbursements and 
petty cash expenses. 

Transfer 
$100,000 

80% 

Graph 2: 19 Disbursements Tested 

Parts and repairs 
$20,220 

16% 

Petty cash 
$1,609 

1% 

Equipment 
$2,650 

2% 

Petty Cash 

$843 

$218 • Food Supplies Parts and 
and other repairs 

Of the $1,609 in total petty cash disbursements tested, $843, or 52%, was used for food purchases. 
According to Attorney General (AG) Opinion No. 95-1340, public funds may be used for 
entertainment expenses for official purposes. Some conunon examples of official purposes include 
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refreshments for board or committee meetings, refreshments at a state funeral, or the grand opening 
celebration of a new agency office that is open to the public. Although food purchases were 
proper1y documented and justified, we caution GRTA to refer to AG Opinion No. 95-1340, which 
limits food purchases with government funds to entertainment expenses for officia1 purposes. 
Other petty cash purchases tested included supplies and others of $548, or 34%, and parts and 
repairs of$218, or 14%. 
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Conclusion and Recommendations 

We found that the GRTA Fund was not properly managed and accounted for in accordance with 
applicable laws, regulations, and best practices. ORTA management did not prioritize internal 
controls over the Fund to reduce risks of theft and misuse of ORTA 's program income. As a result, 
$55K in GRTA bus fares were not deposited into the Fund. Specifically, we found that ORTA did 
not: 

• Adopt and maintain an accounting system for the Fund; 
• Have basic control activities, such as maintaining a check register, performing monthly 

bank reconciliations, and having effective policies and SOPs; and 
• Report the Fund's financial activity to the ORTA Board, Governor, Legislature, or OPA. 

SOPs should adequately mitigate risks to the Fund by documenting the internal control 
responsibilities of an organization. The Fund's current SOPs do not provide a check and balance 
to ensure the Fund is safeguarded from misuse and theft. Management should also adopt 
appropriate control activities to not only reduce exposure of ORT A's program income to theft and 
mismanagement, but also to achieve its mission of providing reliable, accessible and cost effective 
public transportation services. 

To improve controls over the Fund, we recommend the Executive Manager, or his designee to: 

(1) To adopt proper control activities including establishing effective policies and SOPs, 
maintaining a check register, and performing bank reconciliations; 

(2) Send appropriate staff to NAF management or other similar training; 
(3) Include specifications for the process of depositing bus fares collected by the Contractor in 

its formal contract, including more detailed reporting of bus fares and ticket sales (i.e., 
cash, check, and credit card payments) collected by the Contractor and each subcontractor 
to allow ORTA to reconcile against deposits; 

(4) Assign staff to actively monitor receipts and verify the completeness of bus fare deposits; 
and 

(5) Be more transparent and accountable by reporting the Fund's activity to those charged with 
governance including the GRTA Board, and if requested by the Legislature, Governor, or 
OPA. 
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Classification of Monetary Amounts 

Finding Description 
Questioned Potential Unrealized Other Financial 

Costs2 Savin2s Revenues 

1 
INo Accounting System and Lack of 

$- $- $- $ 
Basic Controls 

2 $SSK in Bus Fares Not Deposited $- $- $ 55,252 $ 

3 
No Monitoring or Reporting of 

$ - $- $- $ 
GRTAFund 

4 
No Significant Deficiencies on 

$ 689 $- $- $ 
Disbursements 

Totals $689 $- $ SS,252 $ 

2 Questioned costs are expenditures of funds that are unsupported. unallowable. or otherwise improper. 
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Management Response and OP A Reply 

We transmitted a draft report to GRTA in August 2018 and met with GRTA officials to discuss 
our findings and recommendations. GRT A expressed their general concurrence and provided their 
official response. The Executive Manager agreed with the findings except for the following: 

1. No Accounti.ng System and Lack of Basic Controls 

The Executive Manager disagreed with this finding and stated that GRTA did not 
implement a standard accounting system to create standard accounting reports or perform 
monthly reconciliations because of the minimal amount of transactions. 

OP A Reply: Regardless of the number of transactions, GR TA should have adopted control 
activities, such as maintaining a check register and performing bank reconciliations. 
Although the Executive Manager disagreed with our finding, he stated a genuine desire to 
improve the Funds controls and would implement the recommendations in the report. 

See Appendix 7 for GRTA's management response, which excludes Attachments Band C. These 
attachments will be made available to the public upon receipt of official request. 

The legislation creating the Office of Public Accountability requires agencies to prepare a 
corrective action plan to implement audit recommendations, to document the progress of 
implementing the recommendation, and to endeavor to complete implementation of the 
recommendations no later than the beginning of the next fiscal year. We will be contacting GRTA 
to provide the target date and title of the official(s) responsible for implementing the 
recommendations. 

We appreciate the cooperation given to us by the staff and management of GR TA during the course 
of this audit. 

OFFICE OF PUBLIC ACCOUNT ABILITY 

~ 
Yukari B . Hechanova, CPA, CIA, CGFM, CGAP, CGMA 
Deputy Public Auditor 
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Appendix 1: 

Objective, Scope, and Methodology 

The objective of our audit was to determine whether GRTA's Fund was properly managed and 
accounted for in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and best practices. 

The scope of our audit was from April 2016 through March 2018. 

Methodology 
The audit methodology included the review of pertinent laws, rules and regulations, policies and 
procedures, and other relevant documents pertaining to GRTA's Fund. The work was carried out 
primarily at GRTA's office in the Department of Public Works compound in UpperTumon, Guam. 

We also: 
(1) Researched hotline tips and similar audit reports with the same topic. 
(2} Conducted interviews and walkthroughs with GRT A officials (Executive Manager, 

Administrative Officer, and Board Secretary), to gain an understanding of the Fund. 
(3} Obtained bank statements and supporting deposit slips and reports from ORTA to analyze 

receipts and determine total amount deposited versus the total amount reported by the 
Contractor. We subsequently received and analyzed additional deposits made by the 
Contractor for services provided in our scope. We then combined selected deposits and/or 
receipts for additional analyses, such as the days lapsed from the date of collection and the 
trend of total bus fare revenues for the entire scope period. 

(4) Obtained check disbursements to determine expenditures out of the Fund. We judgmentally 
selected and tested 19 out of 30 disbursements, which included 12 non-petty cash 
disbursements and seven petty cash disbursements. 

(S) Researched best practices to suggest for the improvement of the Fund's SOPs and control 
activities to safeguard the Fund from risks of misuse and theft. 

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the standards for performance audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, 
appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our 
audit objectives. We believe that the evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings 
and conclusions based on our audit objectives. 
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Appendix 2: 

Prior Audit Coverage 

OPA Report No. 01-01, Guam Mass Transit Authority (GMTA) Credit Cards (Issued July 2001) 
The OPA highlighted evidence that supported allegations reported in the OPA hotline that persons 
within the GMTA were using GMT A-issued credit cards for personal purposes. 

OPA Report No. 18-01, GRTA Procurement and Billing of Public Transit Services (Issued 
February 2018) 
The OPA reported GRTA's lack of a formal contract and diligent review and monitoring of 
invoices resulting in $23K in overbilling and $567K in unauthorized charges. 

Financial Audit 
Although the ORTA Fund is required by 12 GCA §6204 to be annually audited by an independent 
certified public accountant or by the Office of the Public Accountability, this is the first audit since 
its establishment in April 2016. 

Other Reports, Studies, etc. 
Despite becoming an autonomous agency in 2009, ORTA has yet to issue a Citizen-Centric Report 
outlining their mission, progress, financial information, or future challenges. 
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Appendix 3: 

Bank Account Activity 

April 2016 $ 32,861.88 $ 3.00 $ 32,858.88 
May2016 316.64 32,542.24 
June2016 3.00 32,539.24 
July 2016 30,082.76 3.00 62,619.00 
August 2016 303.00 62,316.00 
September 2016 3.00 62,313.00 
October 2016 19,332.49 294.00 81,351.49 
November 2016 20,207.69 3.00 101,556.18 
December 2016 36.56 394.56 101 ,198.18 
January 2017 776.18 100,422.00 
February 2017 22,940.45 3.00 123,359.45 
March2017 4,342.99 350.72 127,351 .72 
April 2017 6,522.71 123.50 133,750.93 
May2017 2,964.55 100,183.42 36,532.06 
June2017 3,081.33 220.72 39,392.67 
July 2017 9,667.36 3.00 49,057.03 
August 2017 26,535.84 260.38 75,332.49 
September 2017 20,473.62 215.92 95,590.19 
October 2017 17,606.69 192.91 113,003.97 
November 2017 3,531.73 330.27 116,205.43 
December 2017 5,322.31 10,52 1.76 111 ,005.98 
January 2018 2,779.32 10,037.55 103,747.75 
February 2018 2,643.57 69.16 106,322.16 
March2018 11869.21 20.97 1081170.40 
Subtotal $ 232,803.06 $ 124,632.66 $ 108,170.40 

Less: Outstandi118.. Checks 2,650.00 
Total $ 232,803.06 $ 127,282.66 $ 105,520.40 

15 



Appendix4: Page 1 of2 

Days Lapsed Before Deposited 

Amount 

April 2016 $8,120.25 7/27/2016 88 $8,120.25 

May2016 7,822.12 lOn/2016 129 7,822.12 

June 2016 8,010.37 1017/2016 99 8,010.37 
July 2016 to August 
2016 IS,707.69 11/9/2016 71 15,707.69 

September 2016 8,078.30 2/10/2017 133 8,078.30 

October 2016 7,820.47 2110/2017 102 7,820.47 

November 2016 7,041.68 2110/2017 72 7,041.68 

Det:ember 2016 $1,906.01 9/13/2017 256 1,906.01 

January 2017 2,596.78 9113/2017 225 2,596.78 

February 2017 J,108.50 9/13/2017 197 1,108.50 

March 2017 1,727.68 9/26/2017 179 1,727.68 

April 2017 $3,390.25 7/1312017 74 4,224.85 9/26/2017 149 7,615.10 

May 2017 189.52 5131/2017 4 3,609.90 7/13/2017 43 1,206.37 10/1312017 135 5,005.79 

June 2017 3,033.40 8/22/2017 53 3,966.28 10/13/2017 105 6,999.68 

July 2017 2,534.90 9113/2017 44 3,832.10 10/13/2017 74 6,367.00 

August2017 2,422.91 9/25/2017 25 4,549.55 10/13/2017 44 6,972.46 

September 2017 1,275.90 10/4/2017 4 1,275.90 
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Appendix4: Page 2 of2 

Days Lapsed Before Deposited 

Days 
Lapsed 
Before 

Amount Amount De sit Amount 

October 2017 $165.21 I0/11/2(}17 4 $165.21 
October 2017 to 
November 2017 $2,399.68 12/20/2017 20 2,399.68 

November 2017 51.24 11/8/2017 4 51.24 

November 2017 162.66 11/13/2017 4 162.66 

November 2017 106.43 1 I/27/2017 5 106.43 

December 2017 125.89 12/1112017 4 1,034.45 12120/2017 5 1,160.34 
December 2017 
to January 2018 980.25 1/31/2018 16 980.25 

January 2018 172.28 1/19/2018 6 $828.31 218/2018 8 1,000.59 

Feb 2018 127.50 2/21/2018 4 127.50 

Total $63,701.61 s 17,095.57 $ 25,118.Jl $ 4,414.38 $110,329.68 
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Appendix S: 

Comparison of Bus Fares Deposited and Reported 

l{t'!Hll"h'd ll\ 

l'(·riotl Ut·po~ikd ( ·ontrartor l>illl'l'l'lll'(' 

April 2016 $8,120.25 $7,821.26 $(298.99) 
May2016 7,822.12 7,565.23 (256.89) 
June 2016 8,010.37 7,578.21 (432.16) 
July 2016 to August 20163 15,707.69 13,817.71 (1,889.98) 
September 2016 8,078.30 7,858.40 (219.90) 
October 2016 7,820.47 7,369.20 (451.27} 
November 2016 7,041.68 6,717.46 (324.22) 
December 2016 1,906.01 6,958.27 5,052.26 
January 2017 2,596.78 7,086.82 4,490.04 
February 2017 1,108.50 8,001.61 6,893.11 
March 2017 6,070.67 9,232.50 3,161.83 
April 2017 10,137.81 9,695.64 {442.17) 
May2017 7,780.82 10,128.00 2,347.18 
June 2017 9,818.69 9,464.45 (354.24) 
July 2017 9,034.21 8,635.18 (399.03) 
August 2017 10,474.90 10,352.09 (122.81) 
September 2017 5,227.89 9,197.59 3,969.70 
October 2017 to November 20174 6,709.90 12,099.10 5,389.20 
December 2017 to January 20184 6,530.16 11,109.51 4,579.35 
February 2018 1,815.26 6,623.64 4,808.38 
March 2018 1,869.21 7,358.63 5,489.42 
Total $ 143,681.69 $ 184,670.50 $ 40,988.81 

3 Periods of July 2016 to August 2016, October 2017 to November 2017, and December 2017 to January 2018 were 
combined because some deposits were made in a lump sum for the bus fares and ticket sales collected for this two­
month period, and we could not separately identify what the amounts were for each month. 
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Appendix 6: 

Bus Fares/Ticket Sales for April 2016 to March 2018 

(_ .• , 11 "·""' 
1'1·11••<1 ~~~~t1l1l11('l11·1l,S.1l1' l•1l.1( 

April2016 $8,120.25 
May2016 7,822.12 
June2016 8,010.37 
July 2016 to August 2016 15,707.69 
September 2016 8,078.30 
October 2016 7,820.47 
November 2016 7,041.68 
December 2016 2,832.825 $2,041.456 $1,906.01 
January 2017 7,012.51 6 373 .006 2,596.78 
February2017 5,386.976 1,764.306 1,108.50 
March2017 6.105.016 2,371.606 l ,727.68 
April 2017 2,522.71 3,390.25 4,224.85 
May2017 2,964.55 3,609.90 1,206.37 
June 201 7 2,819.01 3,033.40 3,966.28 
July 2017 2,667.21 2,534.90 3,832.10 
August 2017 3,502.44 2,422.91 4,549.55 
September 2017 3,951.99 1.275.90 $4,189.667 

October 2017 2,776.49 4,030.508 

October 2017 to November 2017 2,399.681 

November 2017 1,533.73 1,828.408 

December 2017 1,888.08 3,164.959 

December 2017 to January 2018 980.259 

January 2018 1,799.07 828.31 3,273.601 

February 2018 1,815.26 5,435.538 

March2018 1,869.21 5,568.153 

Total $ 114,047.94 $ 23,645.92 $ 25,118.12 $30,870.72 s 

4 These amounts were excluded from the Bus Fare Revenue Trend io Graph I ~use there was no breakdown of the amounts collected for the two month period. 
$These amounts were part of the additional S14K identified by the Contractor. There was no detail to identify which portion was credit or cash sales. 
' Of this amount, S 1,762.02 is part of the additional S 14K identified by the Contractor. There was no detail to identify which portion was credit or cash sales. 
1 These amounts were collections from Subcontractor I 111d Subcontractor 2, however, there was no breakdown of the amounts collected by each subcontnctor. 
' 1bc:re was no detail to detennine whether this amount was received from the Contractor, Subcontractor I or Subconlraetor 2. 

$8,120.25 
7,822.12 
8,010.37 

15,707.694 

8,078.30 
7,820.47 
7,041.68 

$807.80 7,588.08 
518.70 10,500.99 
569.05 8,828.82 
221.75 10,426.04 

10,137.81 
7,780.82 
9,818.69 
9,034.21 

10,474.90 
9,417.55 
6,806.99 
2,399.685 

3,362.13 
2,050.50 7,103.53 

980.25s 
5,900.98 
7,250.79 
7,437.36 

4,167.80 $ 1972850.SO 

9 Of this amount, $2, 130 .SO were collections from Subcontractor I and Subcontractor 2, however, there was no breakdown of the amounts collected by each sub con lrllctor. There wu no detail to detcnn ine whether the remaining 
St ,034.45 was received from the Contractor, Subcontractor I or Subcontractor 2. 

19 



Appendix 7: Page 1 of S 

GRT A Management Response 

•• GUAM REGIONAL TRANSIT AVTHORIT\' 
Government of Guam ~' GRTA 

EdM • c. ote G~"trin•r 
laymOnd S 1'tno,.o. li•vt-.tllt CHV'efllOf 

(nr•'l# At11t' A (1.-o.il •• M•~••• 

Auaust 20, 2018 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Deputy Pubfic Auditor, 
Guam Office of Public Accountability 

FROM: hecuth1e Manaaer. 
Gui.m Regional Tnnslt Authortty 

SUlllECT: OPAlwdlt No. 1906, GRTA NAF Audit 

Butnos yon Hofo Adoll 

f'Obo•UH 
tf•1Jtt1• Gutf'I\ H9U 

T151fitl<W'l4" (6Jl}.t7,""'61'·(.t"6 
,,,,,1110s~ 

RECEIVED 
OFFICE OF rua~ >.CCOUNTABILITY 

By. . "' . \J 

DATE· cg. ao IE 

TJME:: __ ~l .... 2. .....,· 1..,..()'--_CJAM rlPM 

We are in receipt of the OPA Report No. 19·06, August 2018 Non-Appropriated Fun di. (NAF) audit and have rev1ewed It 
for content and findin9s. 

GRTA Is happy to receive our first NAF audit by the OPA. something that GRTA has been wiitins for so that we may learn 
from the findings and improve our N.A.F controls, poflcier., and processes/procedures. 

GRTAwlll address the four (4) central findings ;ind hereby provide our response as follows: 

Item 1. No Accoontlns System and Uck of Basic Controls: 

GRTA response: GATA disagrees wlth the fil\dlngs and provide the followlng oplanation. 

GRTA Explanation: GRTA's accounting system utililed were based on bank statements, sales receipts and vendor 
invoices. These Include purchase of food items, supplies, repair parts. and office supplies. While management could be 
more detailed In its aceountins processes/procedures, all expenditures were o'Jsclosed and fully accounted for. 

From the data compiled on ill the document!. above, the GRTA Administrative Officer was recordlns and monitoring all 
monthly non-appropriated fund expenditures in which bank account balances are reported to the Executive Manager in a 
timely manner. In addition, the bank deposits receipts provided by the transit contractor were also being monitored to 
ellsure fare re1ienues were deposited regularly. G RT A uses this monitoring mechanism to insure proper controls of non­
a ppropriated funds. 

GATA did not maint<1in standard accounting journals, b1lance sheets, Income statements, and monthly bank 
reconciliations weren't done due to the simplicity or the account. With very few transactions to enter on the accounting 
ledger, the necessity to do a standard accounting system was not implemented. Therefore, as a result of this NAF audit, 
GRTA management will be hishly recommending to the GRTA board that a book keeping or accounting firm be hired 
competitively to keep records of all expenditures and revenuei. received by this agency. 

For the record, GRTA does not have accountants assigned to this nencv and looks forward to receiving technical support 
from the OPA in regards to accountins format. required ledgers and recommendations as to which potential third party 
vendors are to be solicited for participation for book kee.pins service of tht GRTA NAF checking account. 
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Appendix 7: Page 2 of S 

GRTA Management Response 

Item 2. $551C In bus f8R!s not deposited 

GRTA respome: GRTA agrees with this finding. but with 11xplanation for the extenuating circumstances that occurred 
during the audited period. 

GRTA EXplarmlon: The $551< bus fare in question was due to several months of delay !n payments to the contmtor in lhe 
amount of $760.984.00. Tbess: oaymen)S were not processed In a timely manner by OOA accouotlnR. due to the abgnce 
of a purchase order to justify the payments to the contractor. At that time. GS,t.. took an extended period of time to issur 
a supplemental purchase order In order for the contractor to be paid. 

An error by GSA lo the delayed issuance of the purchase order prompted the Department of Administration (DOA) 
Accounting Division to hold payments to the lr1nslt contractor which took several months to correct. After the 
ratification by GSA on the subfect pucc:Nse order, DOA accounting processed the unpaid Invoices for the services 
rendered Inclusive of lhe prior flstill year's Invoices. 

Despite the long delays In paying the contn1ctor, they {contractor) continued providln5 the much needed bus services 
despite the financial burden Imposed on them. Tht contractor had no recourse but to delay remlttlns the bus fares 
collected for this period sinte they were pl;iced In a dire sltuitlon. The vendor had p;ivcoll to meet. vendor and supplier 
payments to make. When the $760.984.00 iuue was resolved to everyone's satisfaction, which took a few months, the 
vendor was then llble to remit the original $411( bus fare collections in question, but also, further remitted an additional 
$141< for a total of $551:. 

ft@m 3. No Monitoring or R!portl1111 of GRTA Funds. 

GIO'A response: GRTA agrees but with quallflcatlons. 

GIO'A Explanation: As noted by ttle iudlt te;un, "this WH the first OPA audit since the funds and account establishment" 
In Aprll 2016. For the record GRTA took proactive measures and requested both a financial audit and a performance 
audit hick ln December 2015, See attachment "A!' letter to the OPA dated 24 December 2015. 

Whlle the findings of the first NAF audit was reveaDng and helpful. an eitrfler audit requested In December 2015 would 
have afforded and prepared GRTA for a better understanding ot tile nuance of estabOshlng a NAF checking account and 
the detail requirement for settlns up a proper accounting protocol so that GRTA mav better maintain a robust accounting 
system for our non-appropriated fund monies. 

This was the llrst audit for our NAF funds by the OPA, althoueh we requested for an 1udlt since 2015. As a result of the 
audit, GRTA will submit a legislative NAF fund report In a stilndard accounting format (formilt to be approved by OPAJ, 
and accompanied with a detailed written report. 

Addlllonally. It !s lmoortant to note that at no point in time were bus fare monies (cash) ever handled by any GRTA staff 
member, no credit card machines were available on the transit vehicles nor at the GRTA office. Drivers do not make bus 
fare changes on the bus, Riders pay In cash with the correct amount. Riders may utilize prepaid bus tickets in lieu of cash. 
Drivers turn lo all bus fares collected to the contractor facility at the end of each shift Each tr;mslt vehicle has a bus fare 
collection box. 

Item 4. Disbursements 

GIO'Aresponse: GRTA agrees with audit flndlngswlth eicplanatlons provided. 

GRTA Explanatlon: All expenditures were properly documented and approved 1n accordance with the GRTA NAF Policy 
and Procedures. All chedts will have two signiltures as a mHns of cn:m checlc and balances. See 1tt;ichment ~a· GRTA 
NAF Pp!lcy and Procedures 

GRTA Is aware of the twenty three (23) year old AG Opinion paper and have complied with the or'8inal Intent and spirit of 
the AG Opinion No. 95-1340. The $843.24 expenses for food were for purchase of food and nonalcoholic beverages 
Including bottled w11ter. Please note thllt there were forty six (46) separate events In which the $80.24 was expended, 

2 
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Appendix 7: Page 3 of S 

GRTA Management Response 

or an aver1ge expenditure per ewnt of $18.3~ . These event$ were for monthly board meetinss. feeding of lntenliew 
team members (tonductmg interviews for GRTA potential hires/rec:ruitment) as well as for procurement ellilluation team, 
evilluating the Transportition Management System bids submitted by vendors. During the GRTA monthly board 
meeting5, food and beverages/water were con5umed by the board members, GRTA staff, as well as members of the 
public attending the board meeting. No mopjes were eKoended for (!cognition of lpdlyldua! promotion. retirements. nor 
for blobdavs etc· The AG opinion was followed since the NAF foods were ut!l!zed strictly for th1 benefit pf th« publjc. 
whether for board meetings. or Government Interview panels and Government evaluation teams. 

As noted by the audit tum, $689 did not have proper approval. GRTA's policy Is that the board chair (or vice chair) and 
the executive manager (two people I will jointly slan checks for all disbursements. The cumulative e~penses of $689 were 
for vehicle maintenance services (one office vehicle), purchase of toners ilnd cartridges for our office printers as well as 
for towin3 service to retrieve one of our large 17 passen11er transit bus. These expenns 11e for both normal support of 
the administration of lhe GRTA office as well u for operational matters related to keepina our vehicle fleet operational. 
The expenses noted on the ;iudlt end paid with NAF funds were authorized expenses and 11 ;i llowed and authorized 
(within the boundaries) by the *duties and powers" of the GRTA Exetutlve Manager In atcordance with GRTA's enabllns 
ilct. 

Please make •special note• that GRTA did not use any ofthe NAF fund monies to celebrate annual Christmas parties, nor 
were NAF monies spent on annuel aaency week such as the "Transit Week· celebrated by the previous Guam Mass 
Transit Authority (GMTAJ. Further, no NAF funds were utilized for off Island travel or off Island tn1lnlna, semloars, or 
conferences. Also as mentioned earller. GRTA staff do not have acceu to bus fare monies. 

Currently, GRTA has embarked In proc;urlng a transportatk:ln management Sy$tem (TMS) software. All documents for this 
procurement activity has been delivered to GSA for review and guidance. One of the technollJIVfHture that GRTA Is 
pursuing Is to Incorporate a "Transit Access Pau• (TAP) when pr~urlng the transit management system software 
technology. see attachment T ample of a transit eccess pau !TAP! card aka transit smart can;! teJ;bno!osv. This 
technology will allow for a c1shleu bus fare payment system and slmplifles required d1t1 collectlon and reportlns to the 
federal transit administration (FTA). 

In Conclusion the Guam Regional Transit Authority has a genuine desire to Improve Its Non-appropriated Fund {NAFJ 
controls and processes by Implementing the three proposed actions listed below. 

1. Use NAF funds to hire a third party vendor !book keeping or accounting firm) who is familtar with the Guam OPA 
audit process and policies dealing wft.h NAf fund accountln3 and required reportS. 

2. GRTAwill Improve controls over tlte NAF funds by following the five (5) recommendations made by the OPA audit 
team. 

3. Acquire competlUvely a •transportation management system" (TMS) which would allow GRTA to use a transit 
access pass (TAP) transportation technology. Thls system when Incorporated by GRTA will allow for a cashless 
transit tranSlctlon when riders utlllzes the GRTA vehicles, as well as atcumulne and report data required for 
continued support by our feder <JI grancor. 

It Is GRTA's strongest desire to Improve Its NAF controls and accountlng processes and that we thank the OPA audit team 
for pointing out areas In which we need to monitor and Improve. 

Respectfully, 

cc: GRTA loud Clti1rworMn 
GRTA 8a1rd of Directors 

3 

22 



Appendix 7: Page4 ofS 

GRTA Management Response 

GUAM REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY ~.,..,n~, 
Governmtnt of Gu1m r/ ~"\ 

~~1i-tl_C_"-~-G-ow-.mot~~~~~--""'""-;.;.;..;PO~ln;.;.;,,;.2196~~~~-P-h-~~-~-~-71-.~-75--4S&6~m~~7-i-4S-16 al"!,.~idi~r;,. 
RrjlT'Ol'd S. T1r.or10. Lt G- ~•g",.. Gllam %91 Z h r. :61 •) '1S·~ lO 
Enrl o JI Agustn. bt<\llf'le Minager 

December 24, 2015 

Dolores Flores Brooks, CPA, CGFM 
Publlc Auditor 
Suite 401, ONA Bid&. 
238 Archbishop Flores Street 
Hagatna, Guam 96910 

Dear Ms. Brooks.: 

Buenas and Hafa Adall 

n~m: __ ,_r ... o .... 11......_ __ s'A~1 0~1 

We are in r~ceipt of your letter dated December 7, 2015 requesting lnpul on areas of concern that 
me rlts atterition by your office. 

The Guam Regfonal Trinsit Authority (GRTA) officially requests thiilt the office of the Publie 
Accountability conducts both a performance audjt and aJlnanclal aucliuYillWUbll"' quarte t.ofJis<il 
vgr2016. 

GRTA fs very concern that although our enabling act (P.l. 30-05) allows us to be an autonomous agency, 
GRTA has been marginalized and therefore not able to perform its mission effectlvelv. We have reason 
to believe that two ru11dlns source namelv the Guam Mass Transit Automotive Surcharge and the liquid 
Fuel Tax were not fullv disbur5ed as was llltended by law and therefore has hampered the funding of 
bus service open1tlons as weU as the other transit related functions. Equally dtstu<blng ls that four non· 
transporta tion related asenclM were allowed access to these funds . 

Without proper funding and correct organizational structure as per Transit Business Plan, GRTA will not 
be able to provide reliable, affordable and accessible transportalion to the people most in need of a 
robust public transit system. 

Further, we believe that the Guam 2030 Transportation Plan ind the Transit Business Plan identified $20 
mlUion dollars that wu provided by the Federal Highways Administr.iion to purchase SO transit buses u 
we ll as to build a transit maintenance facit!ty by the year 2015. 

Attachment 'A• 
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GRTA Management Response 

• 
GUAM REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY _....,.,.,~ 

--~~----------~-G_o_v_e_rn_m_e_n_t_of_G_u_1_m ________________ ~ ~~ ~~ 
EddrS.CJlvv,~mGr P.O BoxlH6 Phonr (•71l 47S·4516 or415-4611 a'-,,~,,. 
Rlymlll!d5 ?rn0<1G.L\ Gavtnlor Hagatn• Guom96931 fall. 61 11 47S-4600 
E~~~M1n1gtt 

GRTA's management and board members anticipates that your office will honor our request for the two 
audits requested and that we will make ourselVH avJilable to meet with VoU or your designated auditor 
to move forward with this most urgent request. 

One (1) Attachment 

CC: GRTA Board of Directors 
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Appendix 8: 

Status of Audit Recommendations 

~;,;fl{ . -~ilil~-N ~ ~ 'I<.¢': l'.JZ . . • • • .vi. ~ ~~~Jh'h•~·~~>~ilt)'.ifuL~f•ii!J.)H ~® ' ;>;sf, .m~il'· ; • .l:\· •rJ: ~ .ir~ll'o_1.'i!1If~~r!.t!:?~~t~.r, :.i 

To adopt proper control activities Please provide target date 
GR TA Executive including establishing effective and title of official{s) 

1 Manager or policies and SOPS, maintaining a OPEN responsible for 
designee check register, and performing implementing the 

bank reconciliations. recorrunendation. 

Please provide target date 
GRTA Executive Send appropriate staff to Fund and title of official{s) 

2 Manager or management or other similar OPEN responsible for 
designee training. implementing the 

recommendation. 

Include specifications for the 
process of depositing bus fares 
collected by the Contractor in its Please provide target date 

GRTA Executive 
formal contract, including more and title of official(s) 

3 Manager or 
detailed reporting of bus fares and 

OPEN responsible for 
designee 

ticket sales (i.e., cash, check, and implementing the 
credit card payments) collected recommendation. 
by the Contractor and each 
subcontractor to allow GRT A to 
reconcile against deposits. 

Please provide target date 
GRTA Executive Assign staff to actively monitor and title of official{s) 

4 Manager or receipts and verify the OPEN responsible for 
designee completeness of bus fare deposits. implementing the 

recommendation. 

Be more transparent and 
accountable by reporting the Please provide target date 

GRTA Executive Fund's activity to those charged and title of official{s) 
5 Manager or with governance including the OPEN responsible for 

designee GRTA Board, and if requested by implementing the 
the Legislature, Governor, or recommendation. 
OPA. 
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Guam Regional Transit Authority 
Non-Appropriated Funds 

Report No. 18-06, August 2018 

A KNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Key contributions to this report were made by: 

Ira Palero, Auditor-in-Charge 
Yukari Hechanova, CPA, CIA, CGFM, CGAP, CGMA, Deputy Public Auditor 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To ensure the public trust and assure good governance, 
we conduct audits and administer procurement appeals, 

independently, impartially, and with Integrity. 

VISI N 

The Government of Guam is the model for 1ood governance in the Pacific. 
OPA is a model robust audit omce. 

CORE VALUES 

Qbjectivity: To have an independent and Impartial mind. 
f rofessionalism: To adhere to ethical and professional standards. 
Accountability:- To be responsible and transparent in our-actions. 

REPORTIN~ FRAJJD WASTE AND ABUSE 

> Call our HOTLINE at 47 AUDIT (472-8348) 
> Visit our website at www.opaguam.org 
> Call our office at 475-0390 
> Fu our office at 472-7951 
> Or visit us at Suite 401, DNA Building in Hagitiia 

All information will be held in strict confidence. 



--·~ 

!!~,.. ...... \ ) OFFICE OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILTY 
~ .. Suite 401 Pacific News Building, 238 Archbishop Flores St., Hag~tf'la, Guam 96910 

~ 0 u "'.,. :/ Phone: (671) 475-0390 /FAX: (671) 472-7951 --
August 21, 2018 

Honorable Edward Calvo, Governor of Guam 
Honorable Ray Tenorio, Lieutenant Governor of Guam 
Honorable Benjamin Cruz, Speaker of the 34th Guam Legislature 
Honorable Senators of the 34th Guam Legislature 
Mr. Edward Birn, Department of Administration Director 
Mr. Lester L. Carlson, Jr., Bureau of Budget & Management Research Acting Director, 

HafaAdai! 

Transmitted herewith OPA Report No. 18-06, Guam Regional Transit Authority Non­
Appropriated Funds. 

Our audit found that the lack of internal controls over the Fund poses significant risks of theft and 
misuse of ORT A's program income. As a result, $41 thousand (K) in GRT A bus fares reported by 
the contracted bus operator (Contractor), and an additional $14K later identified by ORTA, were 
not deposited in the Fund. This occurred because ORT A did not: 

• Adopt and maintain an accounting system for the Fund; 
• Have basic control activities, such as maintaining a check register. performing monthly 

bank reconciliations. and having effective policies and standard operating procedures 
(SOPs); and 

• Report the Fund's financial activity to the ORTA Board, Governor, Legislature, or OPA. 

For your convenience, you may also view and download the report in its entirety at 
www.opaguam.org. Should you have any questions, please contact Auditor-in-Charge Ira Palero 
at 475-0390 ext. 202. 

Senseramente, 

ukari B. Hechanova. CPA, CIA, CGFM, CGAP, COMA 
Deputy Public Auditor 

-



COMMITTEE ON 

Guam U.S. Military Buildup I Infrastructure I Transportation 
I MINA' TRENT Al IWATRO NA LIHESLATURAN GVAHAN 13"* GUAM LEGISLATURE 

Senator 
FRANK B. AGUON, JR. 

Cb airman 

Senator 
Thomas A. Morrison 

Vice Cllairmaa 

Senator 
Deanis G. Redripez, Jr. 

Member 

Senator 
Joe S. San Apatin 

Member 

Senator 
Rigine Biscoe Lee 

Member 

Seutor 
Louise Borja Mula 

Member 

Senator 
Feraando B. Esteves 

Member 

Speaker 
Benjamin J.F. Cruz 

E1-0fflcio 

August 21, 2018 

Enrique L.S. Agustin 
Executive Manaaer 
Gaam Redonal Tnnslt Authority 
P.O. Box 2896 
HagAtiia, Guam 96932 
Sent via Hand DeUvery and Email: rick.12usdn@2rta.wm 

Subject: Guam Regional Transit Authority Audit by the omce of Public Accountab.llity 

Dear Mr. Agustin: 

Buenos yan Ha/a adai! In a recent meeting with the Office of Public Accountability (OPA) lo discuss th 
audit conducted on the Guam Regional Transit Authority's (ORTA) non-appropriated funds (FUND 
between April 2016 to March 2018, audir findings revealed the FUND had not been "properly manage. 
and accounted for in accordance with applicable laws. regulations, and heat practices. " Moreover, fifty 
five thousand ($55,000) dollars in bus fares had not been deposited into the FUND. See attached. 

Additionally, the OP A provided recommendations to their findings which include, but is not limited to, tht 
following: a process and detail MXXNnting of the collection of but fare deposits and ticket sales collectec 
by the Conttactor and each subcontractor; establish effective policies and Standard Operating Procedures 
and a commitment to transpatency and accountability "by reporting the Fund"' activity to thole charget. 
with governance including the GRTA Board," the Legislature and the Governor. 

Furtbennorc, Section 4 of Chapter XIII of Public Law 34-42 mandates your agency to report all revenu~ 
and expenditures for all funds under your purview to I Maga'/ahen Guahan and the Speaker to , 
Liheslaturan Gudhan on a monthly basis, and post the same on your website. 'The last communicariom 
ftom your agency to I Lfhe$/aluran Gudhan was on March 1, 2018 regarding GRTA's increase of bus fares 
CompUanee with the Law Is not optional. 

The lack of an accounting system and basic controls to include monitoring or reporting of FUND activities 
under your leadership is problematic. This has not been the first time your leadership has been questioned 
by myself and members of the Committee. Please be advised that the Committee will schedule an oversight 
hearing on 1\'eclnesday. September S. 2018 at 3:00 PM. at the Guam Congress Building public hearing 
room. Please ensure key leadership and members of the board are present. 

@. · ·oN,JR. 
· uam U.S. Military Buildup! Infrastructure I Transportation 

lro Na Liheslaturon Gudhan 134th Guam Legislature 

CC: Governor Eddie Baza Calvo, Governor of Guam 
Mayor Louise Rivera, Chairwoman, ORTA Board of Directors 

SUJTE 503, DNA. BLDG. nlAROllJSHOP ROB.IS STREET HACATNA, GUAM '6910 
PHONE: W.n> m-GUM1/2 (486tfl) I f AX: (671) f75-GUMS ('86S) I 

EMAJL: ACUONCCUAMtPGMAJLCOM 

WWW.llRANkAGtJONJR.COM 



GRTA Check Register FY 2017 Current Balance 

( .. as of Au911st 24, 2018) balunce comed from previous fiscal yea1 $ 95,590.19 
{J " Vepos1r ~c Sl'rvrce Chmqc (monrhly) 

POP P11rcliast> Order Payment EXP~ Expenditures •• l'etty Ca~/1 Monthly AllotmPnr. "' $300.00 
OFC - Misc. Of/ice Revenue {ID Replacement/FOIA Reqwsr) 

Code Date Transaction Dec.ription Debit Credit Balance 
10/1/2016 BALANCE CARRIED FROM PREVIOUS FISCAL YEAR $ 62,313.00 $ 62,313.00 

D 10/7/2016 Deposit 
May-Jun. 2016 Fare {KEI Chk #1222) and GBHWC 

$ $ 19,332.49 $ 81,645.49 
$3,500 Chk #0611585 

SC 10/28/2016 BOG Service Charge Monthly maintenance fee $ 

I 
3.00 $ 81,642.49 

EXP 10/31/2016 Check 103 Petty Cash Replenishment (P. Gates) $ 291.00 $ 81,351.49 

Jul-Aug. 2016 Fares {KEI Chk #1390) and GNHWC ....... 
D 11/19/2016 Deposit 

$4,500 Chk #0614037 
$ $ 20,207.69 s 101,559.18 

SC 11/30/2016 BOG Service Charge Monthly maintenance fee $ 3.00 $ 101,556.18 

EXP 12/8/2016 Check 104 AK Motors - GRTA Rav4 Diagnostics $ 44.50 $ 101,511.68 

EXP 12/13/2016 Check 105 
Post Master (Hagatna Post Office Box Rental plus s 105.00 s 101,406.68 
Late Fee $21.00} 

OFC 12/14/2016 Deposit 
FOIA Request(£ . Duenas In #1701-1702cind 17-

$ $ 36.56 $ 101.443.24 
003) 

EXP 12/21/2016 Check 106 Petty Cash R plenis ment (P . Gates} $ 242.06 $ 101,201.18 

SC 12/30/2016 BOG Service Charge Monthly maintenance fee $ 3.00 s 101,198.18 

EXP 12/30/2016 Check 107 ComPacrfic {2 ea. Toner HP305A Inv #655336) $ 259.90 s 100,938.28 

EXP 1/13/2017 Check 108 ComPacific (2 ea. Toner HP305A Inv #655572) $ 259 .90 $ 100,678.38 

EXP 1/17/2017 Check 109 Petty Cash Replenishment (P. Gates) $ 253.38 $ 100,425.00 

SC 1/30/2017 BOG Service Charge Monthly maintenance fee $ 3.00 s 100,422.00 

D 2/10/2017 Deposit Sept-Nov. 2016 Fares {KEI Chk #1685) s 22,940.45 $ 123,362 .45 

SC 2/28/2017 BOG Service Charge Monthly maintenance fee $ 3.00 $ 123,359.45 

EXP 3/7/2017 Check 111 Petty Cash Replenishment (P. Gates) $ 297.72 $ 123,061.73 

D 3/10/2017 Deposit 03.09.17 Cash Fare $ 100.58 $ 123,162.31 

D 3/10/2017 Deposit 03.09.17 Cash Fare s 187.16 s 123,349.47 

0 3/10/2017 Deposit 03.09.17 Cash Fare $ 406.58 $ 123,756.05 

0 3/13/2017 Deposit 03.11.17 Cash Fare $ 94.14 $ 123,850.19 

D 3/13/2017 Deposit 03.11.17 Cash Fare $ 150.87 $ 124,001.0G 

0 3/13/2017 Deposit 03 .11.17 Cash Fare s 238.91 $ 124,239.97 

D 3/15/2017 Deposit 3.14.17 Cash Fare $ 94.60 s 124,334.57 

D 3/15/2017 Deposit 3.14.17 Cash Fare s 164.00 $ 124,498.57 

D 3/15/2017 Deposit 3.14.17 Cash Fare $ 263.35 $ 124,761.92 
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D = Deposit SC - St>rvke Charqt> (monthly) 

POP " Purchase Order Payment (XP · Expcnd1t11res • • Petty Cash Monthly AllotmPnt " $300.00 
Ol'C - M1sr:. Office Revenue {ID Rep/acement/FOIA Requl"st) 

Code Date Transaction Decription Debit Credit Balance 
D 3/17/2017 Deposit 03.16.17 Cash Fare $ 82.99 s 124,844.91 

D 3/17/2017 Deposit 03.16.17 Cash Fare $ 176.18 $ 125,021.09 

D 3/17/2017 Deposit 03.16.17 Cash Fare $ 190.95 $ 125,212.04 

D 3/20/2017 Deposit 03.18.17 Cash Fare s 61.74 s 125,273.78 

D 3/20/2017 Deposit $ 153.66 $ 125,427.44 

D 3/20/2017 Deposit 03.18.17 Cash Fare $ 157.28 $ 125,584.72 

D 3/22/2017 Deposit $ 115.55 $ 125,700.27 

0 3/22/2017 Deposit $ 152.49 $ 125,852.7f 

D 3/22/2017 Deposit 03.21.17 Cash Fare $ 227.56 $ 126,080.32 

EXP 3/22/2017 Check 112 
KEI {GRTA PTOOS Tire Repair - United Tire Inv 

$ 15.00 $ 126,065.32 
#132228) 

EXP 3/22/2017 Check 113 
KEI (GRTA PTOlO Axle Shaft Spring Bracket 

35.00 $ 126,030.32 
Rethreading} 

Check 114 VOID Check $ 126,030.32 

D 3/24/2017 Deposit 03.23.17 Cash Fare $ 82.45 s 126,112.77 

D 3/24/2017 Deposit 03.23.17 Cash Fare $ 234.35 $ 126,347.12 

D 3/24/2017 Deposit $ 254.72 $ 126,601.84 

D 3/27/2017 Deposit 03..--25.17 Cash Fare $ 62.00 $ 126,663.84 

D 3/27/2017 Deposit 03.25.17 Cash Fare $ 174.29 s 126,838.13 

D 3/27/2017 Deposit 03.25.17 Cash Fare $ 202.58 s 127,040.71 

D 3/29/2017 Deposit 03.28.17 Cash Fare $ 162.46 $ 127,203.17 

SC 3/30/2017 BOG S~rvice Charge Monthly maintenance fee s 3.00 s 127,200.17 

D 3/31/2017 Deposit 03.30.17 Cash Fare s 151.55 $ 127,351.72 

D 4/3/2017 Deposit $ 190.55 $ 127,542 .27 ,. 

D 4/ 5/2017 Deposit $ 156.97 s 127,699.24 

D 4/7/2017 Deposit 04.06.17 Cash Fare $ 194.31 $ 127,893.55 

D 4/10/2017 Deposit 04.08.17 Cash Fare s 159.17 $ 128,052.72 

D 4/12/2017 Deposit $ 298.18 s 128,350.90 

D 4/14/2017 Deposit $ 214.78 s 128,565.68 

D 4/17/2017 Deposit s 143.51 $ 128,709.19 

0 4/19/2017 Deposit $ 280.56 $ 128,989.75 

0 4/21/2017 Deposit $ 224.06 s 129,213.81 

0 4/24/2017 Deposit $ 212.81 $ 129,426.62 
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O : Depo.s1r SC • Service Charge (monthly) 

POP - Pitre/lose Order Payment FXP - Expenditures ••Pl' tty Cash Monrlily Allotment= $300.00 
OFC ; Misc. Office Rew>nue (10 Replacement/FOIA Request) 

Code Date Transaction Decription Debit Credit Balance 

D 4/24/2017 Deposit $ 4,000.00 $ 133,426.62 

D 4/26/2017 Deposit $ 217.77 $ 133,644.39 

EXP 4/27/2017 Check 115 Petty Cash Replenishment (P. Gates) $ 120.50 $ 133,523.89 

D 4/28/2017 Deposit $ 230.04 s 133,753.93 

SC 4/28/2017 BOG Service Charge Monthly maintenance fee $ 3.00 $ 133,750.93 

D 5/1/2017 Deposit s 169.85 $ 133,920.78 

D 5/3/2017 Deposit s 225.94 s 134,146.72 

D 5/5/2017 Deposit $ 255.02 $ 134,401.7" 

D 5/8/2017 Deposit $ 240.87 $ 134,642.61 
~ 

D 5/10/2017 Deposit 05.09.17 Cash Fare $ 225.03 s 134,867.64 

EXP 5/11/2017 Check 116 Petty Cash Replenishment (P. Gates) s 180.42 $ 134,687.22 

D 5/12/2017 Deposit 05 .11.17 Cash Fare $ 214.47 s 134,901.69 

EXP 5/12/2017 Check 117 
Treasurer of Guam (Deposit to GRTA Revenue Acct. 

$ 100,000.00 $ 34,901.69 
# 331757001 

D 5/15/2017 Deposit 

\ 
$ 228.69 $ 35,130.38 

D 5/17/2017 Deposit s 257.43 $ 35,387.81 

D 5/19/2017 Deposit S'- 206.54 $ 35,594.35 

D S/22/2017 Deposit .... $ 215.49 $ 35,809.84 

D 5/24/2017 Deposit $ 231.03 $ 36,040.87 

D S/26/201 7 Deposit s 160.48 $ 36,201.35 

SC 5/30/2017 BOG Service Charge Monthly maintenance fee $ 3.00 $ 36,198.35 

D 5/31/2017 Deposit 05.30.17 Cash Fare $ 144.19 $ 36,342.54 

D 5/31/2017 Deposit $ 189.52 $ 36,532.06 

D 6/2/2017 Deposit s 336.82 $ 36,868.88 ... 

D 6/5/2017 Deposit $ 181.12 $ 37,050.00 

D 6/9/2017 Deposit 06.08.17 Cash Fare s 191.67 $ 37,241.67 

D 6/9/2017 Deposit 06.06.17 Cash Fare $ 300.98 $ 37,542.65 

D 6/12/2017 Deposit $ 199.57 $ 37,742.22 

D 6/14/2017 Deposit 06.13.17 Cash Fare $ 254.41 $ 37,996.63 

0 6/16/2017 Deposit 06.15.17 Cash Fare $ 180.43 $ 38,177.06 

D 6/19/2017 Deposit s 188.40 s 38,365.46 

D 6/21/2017 Deposit 06.20.17 Cash Fare s 196.55 $ 38,562.01 

D 6/23/2017 Deposit 06.22.17 Cash Fare $ 230.53 $ 38,792.54 
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D = fJep~.~1t 5( • 'ie1 v1re Chmqe (monthly) 

!'OJ> • Purchase Order Payment EXP - F.xpend1rurcs 0 Perty Cash Monthly Allormenr - SJ00.00 
()f( • MtS<. Ojf1Ce Hcvi:nue (ID Reploceme11r/FOIA Rt>que~t) 

Code Date Transaction Decription Debit Credit Balance 

EXP 6/23/2017 Check 118 Petty Cash Replenishment {P. Gates} $ 217.72 $ 38,574.82 

0 6/26/2017 Deposit 06.24.17 Cash Fare $ 168.32 $ 38,743.14 

OFC 6/27/2017 Deposit FOIA Request {S. Raymundo Inv# 17-0010) $ 262.32 $ 39,005.46 

D 6/28/2017 Deposit $ 207.67 $ 39,213.13 

D 6/30/2017 Deposit 06.29.17 Cash Fare s 182.54 $ 39,395 .67 

SC 6/30/2017 BOG SeNice Charge Monthly maintenance fee $ 3.00 $ 39,392.67 

D 7/3/2017 Deposit $ 183.42 $ 39,576.09 

D 7/5/2017 Deposit $ 170.83 $ 39,746.92 

D 7/7/2017 Deposit 07.06.17 Cash Fare $ 199.20 $ 39,946.12 

D 7/10/2017 Deposit 07.08.17 Cash Fare $ 190.66 $ 40,136.78 

D 7/12/2017 Deposit 07.11.17 Cash Fare $ 169.80 $ 40,306.58 

D 7/13/2017 Deposit s 7,000.15 $ 47,306.73 

D 7/14/2017 Deposit 07.13.17 Cash Fare $ 216.75 $ 47,523.48 

D 7/17/2017 Deposit > 262.68 s 47,786.16 

D 7/19/2017 Deposit 07.18.17 Cash Fare 227.66 s 48,013.82 

D 7/24/2017 Deposit 07 .20.17 Cash Fare $ 515.46 s 48,529.28 

D 7/26/2017 Deposit 07 .25.17 Cash Fare $ 189.99 $ 48,719.27 

D 7/28/2017 Deposit 07.27.17 Cash Fare $ 144.66 $ 48,863.93 

SC 7/28/2017 BOG Service Charge Monthly maintenance fee $ 3.00 $ 48,860.93 

D 7/31/2017 Deposit 07.29.17 Cash Fare s 196.10 $ 49,057.03 

D 8/2/2017 Deposit 08.01.17 Cash Fare s 187.14 $ 49,244.17 

D 8/3/2017 Deposit 
GRTA Arboc Auto Accident {PT106} Insurance 

$ 20,000.00 $ 69,244.17 
Settlement 

D 8/4/2017 Deposit 08.03.17 Cash Fare $ 232.41 $ 69,476.58 "" 

D 8/7/2017 Deposit 08.05.17 Cash Fare $ 198.33 $ 69,674.91 

D 8/9/2017 Deposit 08.08.17 Cash Fare $ 258.26 $ 69,933.17 

EXP 8/10/2017 Check 119 Petty Cash Replenishment (P. Gates) $ 138.04 $ 69,795.13 

Check 120 VOID Check $ 69,795.13 

EXP 8/10/2017 Check 121 Petty Cash Replenishment {P. Gates) $ 119.34 $ 69,675 .79 

0 8/11/2017 Deposit 08.10.17 Cash Fare $ 183.15 s 69,858.94 

D 8/14/2017 Deposit 08.12.17 Cash Fare $ 217.31 $ 70,076 .25 

D 8/16/2017 Deposit 08.15 .17 Cash Fare $ 259.66 $ 70,335.91 

D 8/18/2017 Deposit 08.17.17 Cash Fare $ 228.67 $ 70,564.58 
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0 - Dl!p<Wt .Sf " Sr1v1CP CharqP. (m1>nth/y} 

POP - Purchase Order Payment EXP · fxpcnditur<'< • • Prtty <.ash Monthly Alk>cmcmt : $300.00 

OFC Misc. Office Revenuf' (ID Rr:p/acement/FOIA Request) 

Code 0. Transaction Decription Debit Credit Balance 

D 8/21/2017 Deposit 08.19.17 Cash Fare $ 226.93 $ 70,791.51 

D 8/22/2017 Deposit $ 3,033.40 $ 73,824.91 

D 8/23/2017 Deposit 08.22.17 Cash Fare s 385.78 $ 74,210.69 

D 8/25/2017 Deposit 08.24.17 Cash Fare $ 355.32 $ 74,566.01 

0 8/28/2017 Deposit $ 405.46 s 74,971.47 

D 8/30/2017 Deposit 08.29.17 Cash Fare $ 364.02 $ 75,335.49 

SC 8/30/2017 BOG Service Charge Monthly maintenance fee s 3.00 $ 75,332.49 

0 9/1/2017 Deposit $ 355.43 $ 75,687.92 

D 9/5/2017 Deposit 09.02.17 Cash Fare s 310.01 $ 75,997.93 

D 9/8/2017 Deposit $ 679.69 s 76,677.62 

D 9/11/2017 Deposit 09.09.17 Cash Fare s 262.74 $ 76,940.36 

0 9/13/2017 Deposit s 353.15 s 77,293.51 

D 9/13/2017 Deposit $ 2,534.90 $ 79,828.41 

0 9/13/2017 Deposit s 5,611.29 $ 85,439.70 

D 9/15/2017 Deposit 09.14.17 Cash f are $ 350.07 $ 85,789.77 

EXP 9/15/2017 Check 122 Petty Cash Replenishment (P. Gates) $ 212.92 $ 85,576.85 

D 9/18/2017 Deposit 09.16.17 Cash Fare $ 279.03 $ 85,855.88 

D 9/20/2017 Deposit 09.19.17 Cash Fare $ 277.93 $ 86,133.81 

0 9/22/2017 Deposit 09.21.17 Cash Fare $ 297.97 $ 86,431.78 

D 9/25/2017 Deposit 09.23.17 Cash Fare $ 270.28 $ 86,702 .06 

D 9/25/2017 Deposit s 2,422.91 $ 89,124.97 

D 9/26/2017 Deposit s S,952.53 $ 95,077.50 

D 9/27/2017 Deposit 09.26.17 Cash Fare $ 307.83 $ 95,385.33 .. 
D 9/29/2017 Deposit 09.28.17 Cash Fare $ 207.86 $ 95,593.19 

SC 9/29/2017 BOG Service Charge Monthly maintenance fee $ 3.00 $ 95,590.19 

Fiscal Year 2017 Ending Sub-Total $ 102,828.40 s 136,105.59 $ 95,590.19 
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Specific recommendation to the GRTA board to address NAF and NAF related 

issues. This will be discussed at the next board meeting this month. 

Effective 1 October 2018 

• No GRTA bus tickets will be sold at the vendor's facility. All bus tickets will 
be bought at the Treasurer of Guam (TOG) located at the ITC building, first 
floor. 

• Bulk sale of bus tickets for all Government Agencies will be done at the 

GRTA office, via a voucher or cashier's check or agency check. 

• GRTA staff personnel will pick up at vendor facility all monies (cash) 
collected the previous day and make deposit to the bank. 

Short term solution: 

Hire a book keeping firm to maintain all records, invoices, vouchers and make a 

monthly report to the GRTA Executive Manager so that this will be reported 

during the GRTA monthly board meeting. 

Long Term Solution: 

GRTA to hire two (2) accountants with procurement experience for contract 

management work. 



GUAM REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
Government of Guam 

Eddie 8. Calvo, Governor 
Raymond S. Tenorio. Lt. Govetnor 
Enrique Agustin. Executive Manager 

P.O. Box 2896 
Hagatna, Guam 96932 

Phone: (671) 475-4686 or 475-4616 
Fax: (671) 475·4600 

PETTY CASH REQUEST I REIMBURSEMENT 

Petty Cash is for miscellaneous purcliase under $50.00 and must be approved by the GRTA ExeC11tive Manager 
or GRTA Board Chairperson before funds ca11 be 11sed. Please provide three (3) quotes, If applicable, for the 
item(s) req11ested. All ftmds dispersed MUST be s11pported h)' origillal invoices a11d otlter doc11ments j11stljyi11g 
expense. 

Date: 

0 Request for Funds 0 Reimburse Funds 

Amount of Request/Reimbursement: $ _________ _ Receipt No: 
(/or Rei111h111:rl!111e111 011(1) 

Description of Jtcm(s) for Purchase: 

Description of ltem(s): Estimated Price: 

Reason for Purchase I Reimbursement: 

Requestor Signature Date 

0 Approved 0 Disapproved 

Approving Authority Date 



GUAM REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY ~\o"alTran&/1 
~~~~~~~~~~-G~ov_e_r_n_m_e_n_t_o_f_G_u_a_m~~~~~~~~~~ cl"~~,~ 
Eddle 6. Calvo, Governor P.O. Box 2896 Phone: (671) 475·4686 or 475·4616 ~ 
Raymond S. Te norio, Lt. Governor Hagatna, Guam 96932 Fax: (671 J 475·4600 ~~,'A 
Enriq ue AgUslin. Executive Manager ...,, 17 

PETTY CASH CUSTODIAN AGREEMENT 

Department: 

Custodian: Fund Amount: $ 

As a Petty Cash C11stodia11, I 1111dersta11d that I am responsible for the sec11rity and 111ainte11a1Jce of this Petty 
Cash F1111tf accordi11g to the following guidelines: 

1. The funds will be locked in a secure place at all times . 

2. All disbursements from the fund MUST have proper back up and supporting documents (invoices and 
receipts) and will be made in accordance with the current GRTA Policies and Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOP). Note that under these policies, most purchases of goods or services over $50.00 must be 
done through the Agency's procurement process. 

3. At all times, the total of the receipts plus the cash on hand MUST EQUAL the fund balance. 

4. In order to replenish the fund, a check from the GRTA Checking Account from Bank of Guam will be 
prepared for the balance incurred from the last month and submitted to GRTA Executi\·e Manager and the 
GRTA Board Chairperson along with the Petty Cash Log with supporting invoices and documents for 
proper signatures. 

5. The reimbursement will be in the form of a check payable to the "Petty Cash Custodian Name in Trust" for 
petty cash only and will be processed during normal weekly check runs. It is the responsibility of the 
Custodian to allow time for this process. 

6. The Petty Cash Custodian may NOT delegate authority for the funds. 

7. lf the Petty Cash Fund is no longer required, it will be returned to GRTA Administrative Officer/Financial 
Officer promptly. 

8. Any shortages over $50.00 as the result of theft, fraud, defalcation, or other irregularities should be reported 
to the GRTA Executive Manager and any of the following individuals; Board Chairperson, Board Vice Chair 
and/or GRTA's Administrative Officer no later than the first business day following the discovery. 

I agree to accept full respo1tsibilityfor tlte Petty Cash Frmd accordi11g to tire abol'e g11ide/i11es. 

Petty Cash Custodian 
(Print and Sign) 

TO BE CO<\fPLETED UPON RETURN OF PETTY CASH: 

0 Acknowledge Receipt of Returned Funds 

Received By: ------------

Date 

Amount Returned: $ 
~~~~--~-~-



GRTA Staff and Management Score Card. Accomplishments by the 

GRTA team. 

1. Bus pilot program executed and completed November 30, 2014. 

2. No more month to month bus service contract. 

3. Done .. .. bought 12 MV-1 ADA van averted loss of ARRA funding. 

4. Done .... bought 11 low floor ADA buses .... FTA federal funds. 

5. Website made ADA compliant. GRTA,OTEC, and GuamWEBZ 

6. Done. GRTA bathroom and office ADA compliant. 

7. Federal funds unfrozen. Feds satisfied, proof of multistep bid 

energized and moving forward. 
8. Two hour bus service afternoon gap closed. No longer an issue. 
9. The long awaited bus service contracted awarded in Nov. 2016. 

10. Bus fares now under the control of GRTA, not DOA. 
11. Bus fares increased approved after 37 years of no increase. 
12. All 13 bus shelters renovated and strategically relocated 
13. 18 new bus stop signs installed after 37 years of neglect. 

14. Procured and installed 5 heavy duty transit bus benches. 
15. Two short term ground maintenance contract awarded. 

16. Two solar light system installed in Hagatna. Currently 
awaiting award of twenty (20) DOI funded solar lights. 

17. As reported by the OPA to the general public, GRTA did not 

get their fair share of the GHF monies. Diverted to other non­
transportation agencies. 

18. $20 million mysteriously disappeared. No one from the 

Legislature interested in finding out what happen. The money is 

to be used to purchase 50 transit buses and build a transit bus 

maintenance facility. 

19. Funding is lacking to deploy and execute on the GRTA transit 
business plan dating back tO 2010. Plan was federally funded. 



• ..: 

20. Public Law 30-05 not followed. Only 5of13 staff personnel 

were reverted to GRTA. Funds withheld for 9 positions. 

21. To date, GRTA is still homeless and have moved 4 times. 

Former transit office building was given to the Hagatna Mayor and 

it belongs to GRTA, was to be return to GRTA. 

Using the GRT A Staff and Management Score Card system, we were 

able to accomplish a lot despite the fact that GRTA underwent a 57% 

personnel attrition rate (5 of 7 left) during the first 18 months of new 

leadership by the current Executive Manager. 

Expert guidance and support by the GRTA board Chair Mayor Rivera, 

Vice Mayor Frank Benavente, Andrew Tydingco, David Arentz, and 

Gerard Cruz. 



. . 

Board input for oversight. 5 September 2018 

Challenges for the incoming executive manager: 

1. Bus Pilot program via Executive order was not done 

despite 7 months of planning and meetings. 

2. Month to month bus service contract was ongoing for 

12 years. 

3. ARRA funds for vans in jeopardy $921,000. Expires in 

11 months. Despite the ARRA award since 2009 

4. FTA federal funds for buses were not utilized despite 

federal grant since 2008 

5. Website not yet made ADA Compliant 

6. Bathroom/toilet not yet made ADA compliant 

7. Funds from FTA was frozen. Due to non-competitive 

nature of the month to month bus service contract 

8. Two hour afternoon bus service Gap was yet to be 

resolved. 

9. No progress on the Long term bus service scope of 

work for a Multi- step bid {MSB) process 

10. Transit bus fare monies used elsewhere besides 

Transit. 

11. Bus fares not increased nor address in over 30 years. 

12. All 13 transit bus shelter were dilapidated and not 

repaired not strategically placed 

13. No bus stop sign installed. 



.. 

14. No additional transit bus benches bought or installed. 

15. No grounds maintenance contract to clean up bus 
stops and bus shelter locations. 

16. No lighting whatsoever at the main transit terminal. 

17. Transit liquid fuel tax and mass transit automotive 

surcharged intentionally diverted and given to other 

entities in the tens of million. 

18. $20 million to purchased 50 buses and build a bus 

maintenance facility was utilized elsewhere. This 

money did not go to GRTA for their use IAW PL 30-05 
19. The approved Transit business Plan 2010 was not 

executed despite federal funds being spent on writing 

the plan. 

20. Previous assets belonging to the former Guam Mass 
transit were not transferred back to GRTA despite PL 

30-05 mandating that all assets will revert to GRTA in 

March of 2009. 

21. The Hagatna transit office was given to the Hagatna 

Mayor, causing transit staff to move at least 4 times 

and are still hometess as of today. 



( ) Specific recommendation to the GRTA board to address NAF and NAF related 

issues. This wiU be discussed at the next board meeting this month. 

Effective 1 October 2018 

• No GRTA bus tickets will be sold at the vendor's facility. All bus tickets will 
be bought at the Treasurer of Guam (TOG) located at the ITC building, first 

floor. 

• Bulk sale of bus tickets for all Government Agencies will be done at the 

GRTA office, via a voucher or cashier's check or agency check. 

• GRTA staff personnel will pick up at vendor facility all monies (cash) 

collected the previous day and make deposit to the bank. 

Short term solution: 

Hire a book keeping firm to maintain all records, invoices, vouchers and make a 

monthly report to the GRTA Executive Manager so that this will be reported 

during the GRTA monthly board meeting. 

Long Term Solution: 

GRTA to hire two (2) accountants with procurement experience for contract 

management work. 
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Eddie B. Calvo, Governor 
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GRTA RESOLUTION NO. 2016-003 

ESTABLISH PETTY CASH FUNDS 

Whereas, the Guam Regional Transit Authority (GRTA) is a public corporation to plan, 
establish, develop, coordinate, promote, own and operate facilities and services that 
support public transportation and public parking within Guam. 

Whereas, the Guam Regional Transit Authority is duly established under 12 GCA 
Chapter 6 (via P.L. 30-05} as an autonomous agency of the Government of Guam and 
pursuant to § 6105, GRTA is hereby empowered to enter into contracts, leases, 
concession agreements and permits and to execute all instruments necessary or 
convenient in the exercise of its purpose and powers; 

Whereas, the implementation of these services may require immediate access to small 
amounts of funds for the purpose of supportive items. including refreshments for GRTA 
board meetings and work sessions; 

Whereas, on July 5, 2016 GRTA Board of Directors regular meeting, the Board 
authorizes the establishment of a monthly Petty Cash Fund, and determined it to be 
approved; 

Whereas, it is the desire of the GRTA Board of Directors that the GRT A Administrative 
Officer, Myra Abaya, be the custodian of the GRTA Petty Cash Fund; 

Whereas, it is estimated that the maximum amount of claims to be paid in any one 
month will be no more than Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00); 

Whereas, it is estimated that the maximum amount of such claims to be paid in any 
fiscal year will be no more than Three Thousand Six Hundred Dollars ($3,600.00) 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED AND ADOPTED on the 15th day of August, 2016 
by the Guam Regional Transit Authority that, GRTA is authorized and directed to 
establish a petty cash fund to be and not to exceed in the amount of Three Hundred 
Dollars ($300.00) per month. 

FURTHER BE RESOLVED that Guam Regional Transit Authority Board of Directors 
authorizes the GRTA custodian to administer and account for petty cash. 

Duly adopted by the GRTA Board of Directors this /"'3k day of ~-. 
2016. 

(GRTA RESOLUTION 2016-003) 
Establish Petty Cash Funds 

1 
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DATE 

DATE 

GERARD A. CRUZ 
Vice Chairman 

VICENTE 0. GUMATAOTAO 

(GRTA RESOLUTION 2016·003) 
Establish Petty Cash Funds 
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GUAM REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

·····················································································································•it•••···· ...... Ill •••••••••• 
Petty Cash Fund Procedures 

• General Infonnation 
• Establishing a Petty Cash Fund 
• Increasing a Petty Cash Fund 
• Decreasing a Petty Cash Fund 
• Changing a Custodian 
• Managing a Petty Cash Fund 
• Replenishing the Petty Cash Fund 
• Reconciling Petty Cash Fund and Reporting Losses 
• Safeguarding the Fund 
• D etermining Excess Funds 

111111•111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111411111111111111111•111111111111111111114••••••• • ••••••••••••• • ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••1••• • •1•1••••~••••••••••• •••I•.• e •. • • • e; • • • 

General Information 

The purpose of this policy is to establish procedures for petty cash funds and the custody of those 
funds. 

Guam Regional Transit Authority may establish a petty cash fund for a maximum of Three Hundred 
Dollars ($300.00) per month; exceptions are allowed per the approval from the ORTA Chairperson 
or his/her designec and the ORTA Executive Manager. 

Guam Regional Transit Authority ·will conduct random audits of selected funds once per year. 

Guam Regional Transit Authority will hold the Petty Cash Custodian liable for misuse or 
mismanagement of funds. 

Petty cash funds must be kept in the Petty Cash Custodian locked safe, desk, cabinet or other 
secured area. 

Petty cash funds may NOT be used for personal use, personal loans or any single items over $50.00. 

Petty cash MAY be used for miscellaneous items including refreshments for meetings and work 
sessions as approved by GRTA and The GRTA Board of Directors. 

GRTA PETIY CASH POLJC-Y AND PROCEDURES 0!.16.18 
PDgc 1 ors 
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Establishing a Petty Cash Fund 

Guam Regional Transit Authority petty cash fund was established August 15, 2016 by the 
Guam Regional Transit Authority Board of Directors. GRTA Resolution No. 2016-003. 
Once the GRTA check has been prepared, the Petty Cash Custodian will present the check 
for cash at Bank of Guam with the proper identification. 

The Guam Regional Transit Authority Board of Directors requesting the establishment of a 
petty cash fund is responsible for: 
• Ensuring the disbursements are in compliance with The Guam Regional Transit 

Authority policies and procedures, and the GRTA Resolution No 2016-003 ; 
• Ensuring the proper security of funds and prompt reporting oflosses; 
• Ensuring accountability is maintained for the fund; 
• Ensuring the correct amount is promptly deposited with the GRTA Office Petty Cash 

Fund. 
• Funds for the establishment of Petty Cash comes from GRTA 's revenue generating bus 

fares. The funds are then placed into ORT A's checking account. 

Increasing a Petty Cash Fund 

To increase funds. the department must submit a request for the amount of the increase for 
petty cash to the GRTA Board of Directors. Upon approval from the GRTA Board of 
Directors a check will be issued. The Petty Cash Custodian will be notified and presents the 
check to the GRTA Board Chairperson and ORTA Executive Manager for signature and 
then cash the check at Bank of Guam. 

Decreasing or Closing a Petty Cash Fund 

When a GR TA Board of Director decides that the petty cash fund should be decreased, the 
amount is returned and deposited to the Guam Regional Transit Authority checking account. 
A copy of the cash receipt issued for this deposit and a memo from the authorized 
signatories requesting the decrease will be given to the GRTA Administrative Officer for 
further processing and record filing. 

Changing a Custodian 

When a change in the petty cash custodian is required, the ORTA Administrative Officer 
must safeguard the fund and account for the fund 's cash. The cash on hand must be counted, 
receipts reconciled, and the results of the reconciliation recorded on the Petty Cash Log by 
the GRTA Executive Manager before relieving the current custodian. If the custodian does 

GRTA PETIY CASH POLICY AND PROCEDURF.S 02.16. 18 
Page 2 ofS 
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not complete this step, the ORT A Administrative Officer must reconcile the fund. When a 
new custodian is appointed, the new person should count the cash and reconcile the fund 
using the Petty Cash Log. 

The GRTA Administrative Officer must complete the Petty Cash Custodian Form 
designating the new custodian. The form must be submitted along with the Petty Cash Log 
and all receipts for the funds to GR TA Administrative Officer for further processing. GRT A 
Administrative Officer will adjust the financial records to reflect the new custodian. 

Managing a Petty Cash Fund 

Petty cash funds are established for reimbursement of small out-of-pocket expenses incurred 
in the course of conducting GRT A business. Petty cash funds promote efficiency and 
economy to GRTA by eliminating the preparation of checks for small amounts. 

Generally, petty cash transactions will consist of emergency supplies, business related meal 
expenses, parking expenses, etc. Original receipts MUST be obtained to support the 
disbursements. 

It is the duty of the Petty Cash Custodian to ensure that the disbursement is appropriate and 
is an allowable expense. 

Requesting Petty Cash Funds 

If a request for Petty Cash is submitted, the requcstor must submit three (3) valid quotes 
from various vendors for the requested item, if applicable, and then submitted to the Petty 
Cash Custodian with a justification of the item(s) needed. 

The Petty Cash Custodian will review the request if valid and an allowable expense. If 
request is approved, the Petty Cash Custodian will give the funds to the requestor. 

The requester MUST purchase the item(s) and certify the item(s) by signing on the bottom 
of the invoice. The requester will then submit the Original Invoice and supporting 
documents to the Petty Cash Custodian for accountability. 

Any and all expenditures must be logged on the Petty Cash Log as the funds are issued, 
increased, decreased or .. repl~ed. The date of the transaction, the vendor used, and the 
item purchased, the purpose for the purchase, and the exact amount of the purchase should 
be recorded in the log. 

GR TA PETTY CASH POLlfY ANO PROCEDURES o:u 6.18 
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As the custodian disburses the petty cash funds, the following procedures must be followed: 

1. All expenditures MUST have Original invoices. Photocopies of invoices are 
NOT allowed. 

2. Invoices must have complete documentation. 

a. Vendor Name 
b. Date 
c. Item Purchased 
d. Pwpose 
e. Amount of bn"oice 
f. Requestor 's signature on receipt of goods. 

Replenishing the Petty Cash Fund 

The fund is to be reimbursed monthly. The expenditures logged on the Petty Cash Log are totaled 
and the cash on hand is also recorded in the log. The total expenditures and cash on hand SHOULD 
EQUAL tlze total petty cash fimd. 

The GRTA Board Chairperson and the GRTA Executive Manager must sign the Petty Cash Log 
after reviewing all expenditures. The payee is the petty cash Custodian, with "Petty Cash" written 
underneath the name on all petty cash checks. All of the expenses are then listed, grouped together 
reconciling Petty Cash Fund and Reporting Losses. 

The fund is to be reconciled at least monthly. Count the cash on hand and add up the 
receipts, the total should equal the authorized amount of the fund. If there is an overage or 
shortage caused by carelessness on the part of the custodian, the board chairperson will 
make a determination as to whether to replace the custodian. 

Any shortages over $50.00 as the result of theft, fraud, defalcation, or other irregularities 
should be reported to the GRT A Executive Manager and any of the following individuals; 
Board Chairperson, Board Vice Chair and/or GRTA's Administrative Officer no later than 
the first business day following the discovery. Losses will be investigated by the 
Administrative Officer and any recommendation made by the Administrative Officer must 
be implemented before the fund is replenished. 

To return the fund to the original amount, complete a Petty Cash Log and Memo-To-File and 
submit to the Administrative Officer, charging the overage or shortage to the GRTA Bank of 
Guam Checking Account. 

GRTA PETTY C'ASH POLICY ANO PROCEDURES 02. 16.18 
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Safeguarding the Fund 

The petty cash fund must be in the control of the Petty Cash Custodian. Only the custodian 
should be allowed access to the fund. 

The cash must be kept in the Petty Cash Custodian's locked safe, drawer, file cabinet or other 
secure area. 

Determining Excess Funds 

It is the responsibility of the Petty Cash Custodian to report to the GRTA Executive Manager 
that the petty cash fund is larger than needed. A rule of thumb to follow is that the fund 
should "tum over every month", i.e. every month the total amount of the fund should be 
replenished. A balance in excess of one month could indicate extra funds that should be 
deposited with the GRTA Bank of Guam Checking account and documentation processed to 
decrease the fund through Memo-To-File. 

GR.TA PETIY C'ASll POU("\' AND PROCEDURES 02.16. lS 
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Senator Thomas C. Ada, 
Vice Chairperson 

Acting Speokerlherese M. Terloje, 
Member 

Senator Frank B. Aguon, Jr .. 
Member 

Senator Teleno C. Nelson. 
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COMMITTEE ON RULES 
SENATOR REGINE BISCOE LEE, CHAIR 

SIKRIT ARIAt;J L/HESLA TU RAN GUAHAN • 
I MINA'TRENTAI KUA17RO NA LIHESLATURAN G UAHAN 

LEGISLATIVE SECRETARY • 341H GUAM LEGISLATURE 

COMMITTEE REPORT CHECKLIST 
Part 1 I 1 

OVERSIGHT HEARING 
with 

Guam Regional Transportation Authority 

Senator Dennis G. Rodriguez. Jr .. 
Member 

Senator Joe S. Son Agustin. 
Member 

Senator Michael F.Q. Son Nicolas. 
Member 

Senator Jomes v. Espotdon. 
Member 

Senator Mory Comacho Torres, 
Member 

a ) Discussion of the Office of Public Accountability audit on the Guam Regional Transit 
Authority's (GRTA} non- appropriated funds (FUND} between April 2016 to March 2018. 

(A) PUBLIC HEARING 

(8) COMMITTEE REPORT 

{C) COR Action 

By Senator Frank B. Aguon, Jr. 
{1) HEARING NOTICES 

SR§§ 6.04(oJ( l) and 6.04(a)(2), 
Open Government Law (5 GCA, Ch. 8 

'X, (a) Five (5) working days prior 
(ALL Senators & ALL Media ) 

(b} Forty-eight (48} hours prior 
(ALL Senators & ALL Media) 

(2) Date and Time of Hearing: 

Date and Time of Notice: 

3) Location: 

~-, .tQ,20\~@ ~· 
Guam Congress Building, Public 

Hearing Room 

(1) Committee Report filed with COR? 
YES o NO 

(2) COMMITIEE REPORT COMPONENTS 

CMTE Report duly filed 

o CMTE Report non-conforming for 
acceptance: Return to Committee 

No Sta 


